
Posted:  Thursday, November 17, 2022 
At: All Hudson schools, SAU building, district website 

HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT  ♦  Hudson, New Hampshire 
Hills Memorial Library     18 Library Street 

6:30 pm    Regular Meeting 
followed by non‐public session  

November 21, 2022 – Agenda  

Estimated 
time 

6:30pm  A. Call to Order 
Pledge of Allegiance 

6:31pm  B. Public Input 
Hudson residents are welcome and encouraged to share feedback with the 
board on agenda items  

7:01pm  C. Good News Update (Information) 
Assistant Superintendent Kim Organek will share a good news update  

7:03pm  D. New Business  

1. Teamsters Tentative Agreement Ratification (Decision)
Business Administrator Jen Burk will review the tentative agreement

2. Staples Donation (Decision)
Assistant Superintendent Kim Organek will review a 
donation of school supplies

3. Class of 1962 Scholarship and Donation (Decision)
John Kendall’s Art Donation  

7:15pm  E. Old Business 

1. Hudson School District Warrant Articles (Decision)
Superintendent Dan Moulis and Business Administrator Jen Burk will present 
and discuss the 2023‐24 warrant articles  
Warrant Articles ‐ draft 
NH State Board of Education – Building Aid   



Posted:  Thursday, November 17, 2022 
At: All Hudson schools, SAU building, district website 

 

School Board Meeting Agenda – November 21, 2022  Page 2 

2. Superintendent’s Goals (Discussion) 
Superintendent Dan Moulis will discuss his goals, previously shared at the 
November 7 meeting 

8:00pm  F. Policies  
 

1. Second Reading (Decision) 

BHE School Board Use of Email    NHSBA version replaces  
current policy*   

EEAEA Mandatory Drug and Alcohol 
Testing   

Current policy with tracked changes 

EHAB Data Governance and Security   Current policy with tracked changes  

GBCD Background Investigation and 
Criminal History Records Check   

NHSBA version replaces  
current policy*  

IHCD Advanced 
Coursework/Advanced Placement 
Courses & STEM Dual and 
Concurrent Enrollment Program   

Current policy with tracked changes  

IJOC Volunteers    NHSBA version replaces  
current policy* 

IK Earning of High School Credit    New policy – NHSBA version   

ILBA Assessment of Educational 
Programs   

New policy – NHSBA version   

ILBAA High School Graduation 
Competencies   

New policy – NHSBA version   

 

  2.  First Reading (Discussion) 
 

ADD Safe Schools  Withdrawn by NHSBA – November 
2020, Replaced by EBB 

EBB School Safety  EBB entirely replaces current policy* 

EHB Data and Records Retention  Revised with track changes‐ more 
specific provisions relating to the 
destruction of records 

IFA Instructional Needs of Each 
Individual Student 

Current policy with minor tracked 
changes 

IMBC Alternative Credit Options  Current policy with updates ‐awarding 
credits for courses at another approved 
school 

JCA Change of Class of School or 
Assignment Best Interests and 
Manifest Hardship 

NHSBA version replaces current policy* 

JEC Manifest Educational 
Hardship 

Withdrawn by NHSBA I November 
2020; language is updated in JCA 

 



Posted:  Thursday, November 17, 2022 
At: All Hudson schools, SAU building, district website 

 

School Board Meeting Agenda – November 21, 2022  Page 3 

8:20pm  G. Recommended Action 
1. Manifests – Recommended action: Make necessary corrections and sign 
2. Minutes – October 26, 2022 ‐ Draft minutes 
3. Minutes – November 7, 2022 – Draft minutes 

 

8:21pm  H. Reports to the Board (Information) 
District administrators will share updates for the board and public 
1. Superintendent Report  

 

8:25pm  I. Committee Reports 
Board members will share committee updates (if necessary) 

 

8:30pm  J. Correspondence (Information) 
1. Discipline Report 

2. Advanced Placement Course Enrollments  

8:32pm  K. Board of Selectmen – Liaison Comments 
 

8:35pm  L. Student Representative Comments 
 

8:38pm  M. Board Member Comments 
 

8:45pm  N. Non‐Public Session 
RSA 91‐A:3 II provides certain conditions under which the School Board MAY enter into non‐public 
session.   b.  The hiring of any person as a public employee. 

 
These conditions are:  
a. The dismissal, promotion or compensation of any public employee or the disciplining of such 

employee, or the investigation of any charges against him, unless the employee (1) has a right 
to a meeting and (2)  requests  that  the meeting be open,  in which case  the  request shall be 
granted.  

b. The hiring of any person as a public employee.  
c. Matters which, if discussed in public, would likely affect adversely the reputation of any person, 

other  than  a  member  of  the  body  or  agency  itself,  unless  such  person  requests  an  open 
meeting.  

d. Consideration of the acquisition, sale or lease of real or personal property which, if discussed in 
public, would likely benefit a party or parties whose interests are adverse to those of the general 
community.  

e. Consideration  or  negotiation  of  pending  claims  or  litigation  which  has  been  threatened  in 
writing or filed against the body or agency or any subdivision thereof, or against any member 
thereof because of his membership in such body or agency, until the claim or litigation has been 
fully adjudicated or otherwise settled.  

i. Consideration of matters relating to the preparation for and the carrying out of emergency 
functions, including training to carry out such functions, developed by local or state safety 
officials that are directly intended to thwart a deliberate act that is intended to result in 
widespread or severe damage to property or widespread injury or loss of life.  



Posted:  Thursday, November 17, 2022 
At: All Hudson schools, SAU building, district website 

 

School Board Meeting Agenda – November 21, 2022  Page 4 

k.  Consideration by school board of entering into a student or pupil tuition contract authorized 
by RSA 194 or RSA 195‐A, which, if discussed in public, would likely benefit a party or parties 
whose interests are adverse to those of the general public or of district that is considering a 
contract, including any meeting between the school boards, or committees thereof, involved 
in the negotiations. 

l.  Consideration of legal advice provided by legal counsel, either in writing or orally, to one or 
more members of the public body, even where legal counsel is not present. 

m.   Consideration of whether to disclose minutes of a nonpublic session due to a change in 
circumstances under paragraph III. However, any vote on whether to disclose minutes shall 
take place in public session. 

 

9:05pm  O. Adjourn 
 

 
 

Upcoming Meetings 
 

Meeting  Date  Time  Location  Purpose 

School Board  December 5, 2022  6:30 pm  Hills Memorial Library  Regular Meeting 

School Board  December 19, 2022  6:30 pm  Hills Memorial Library  Regular Meeting 

School Board  January 9, 2023  6:30 pm  Hills Memorial Library  Regular Meeting 

 



 

HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SAU # 81 

20 Library Street  Hudson, NH 03051-4240 
(603) 883-7765      fax (603) 886-1236 

 
Daniel Moulis, Ed. D 

Superintendent of Schools 
(603) 886-1235 

dmoulis@sau81.org  

Kimberly Organek 
Assistant Superintendent 

(603) 886.1235 
korganek@sau81.org  

Rachel Borge 
Director of Special Services 

(603) 886-1253 
rborge@sau81.org  

Jennifer Burk 
Business Administrator 

(603) 886-1258 
  jburk@sau81.org  

 

 

 

 

To: Hudson School Board 

From: Kimberly Organek, Assistant Superintendent 

Date: November 21, 2022 

Re: Staples Donation 

 
The Londonderry Staples store would like to donate 800 purchased donation packs from their store 
to the district. The packs are pictured below and contain pencils, pens, glue, erasers and highlighters, 
worth $5 each. The packs would be distributed to Hudson students. 
 
 

 

mailto:lrussell@sau81.org
mailto:korganek@sau81.org
mailto:rborge@sau81.org
mailto:jburk@sau81.org


 

 

 

 

 

                                                        Memorandum 

To: Dan Moulis, Superintendent 
       Hudson School Board 

From: Steve Beals, Principal 

Date: November 15, 2022 

RE: Class of 1962 Scholarship and Donation 

 
In mid-October, the Alvirne Class of 1962 held their 60th reunion in the Barnyard Café.  In celebration 
of their milestone and connection to Alvirne, their classmates established the “Aggie Maggie” 
Scholarship in celebration of their classmate, Clare Mansfield, who was the first female FFA student in 
NH.  Our own talented FFA student officers attended the reunion to help recognize Clare with their 
opportunities now, 60 years later. Our successful team now includes national champions. 
 
The story of “Aggie Maggie” is compelling. Her mother enrolled her at Alvirne, and she vehemently 
argued with then Principal Chester Steckevicz to allow her participation.  The rules at the time 
specifically did not allow females in the FFA. “Aggie Maggie” was an unofficial participant, but pioneer 
way before her time. 
 
A scholarship fund was established through donations and included a large amount of donated 
artwork by classmate, John Kendall.  John left Alvirne, enrolled in art at UNH and became an art 
teacher for 35 years.  As an artist himself, he created several original paintings and has donated a large 
sum to Alvirne.  He was recently the subject to a unique NH Chronicle episode highlighting his loss of 
vision and how he continues his art today by colorizing his art that was originally done in sepia. The 
main office conference room at Alvirne has many pieces of art available for review and purchase at the 
cost of $80 per print if you have an interest for a unique and signed piece of art.  His main themes are 
nautical based.  Any pieces that are purchased will directly benefit the Aggie Maggie scholarship fund. 
 
I apologize for being about one month late in sending this email.  I do encourage your review of his 
artwork and invite you to visit his website: www.kendallink.com 

 

Jodi C. Hallas 
Associate Principal 

 
Jason C. Tesini 

Associate Principal 
 

Louise M. Goulet 
Assistant Principal 

 
Eric C. Frauwirth 

Career & Technical  
Education Director 

 

ALVIRNE HIGH SCHOOL 
Home of the Broncos 

                200 Derry Road 
             Hudson, NH  03051 
 

William R. Hughen 
District Director  

of School Counseling 
 

Karen E. Bonney 
Director of Athletics  

 
Susan E. Bureau 

Dean of Academics 
 

Sara D. Brown 
Department Chair for 

Special Services 
 

Steven J. Beals, Principal 
 

Phone: (603) 886-1260      Fax: (603) 816-3513 

 



 

 

WARRANT ARTICLES 

HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT 
State of New Hampshire 

 
To the inhabitants of the School District of Hudson, New Hampshire qualified to vote in district affairs: 
 
FIRST SESSION OF ANNUAL MEETING (DELIBERATIVE SESSION) 
You are hereby notified to meet in the Hudson Community Center in said district on the 11th day of February 
2023 at 9:00 am for the first session of the annual school district meeting, for explanation, discussion, and 
debate of the Warrant Articles 1 through 13.  Warrant articles may be amended subject to the following 
limitations: (a) warrant articles whose wording is prescribed by law shall not be amended, (b) warrant 
articles that are amended shall be placed on the official ballot for a final vote on the main motion, as 
amended, and (c) no warrant article shall be amended to eliminate the subject matter of the article. 
 
SECOND SESSION OF ANNUAL MEETING (OFFICIAL BALLOT VOTING) 
You are hereby notified to meet again at the Hudson Community Center or the Alvirne High School Cafeteria 
in said district on Tuesday, March 14, 2023 between the hours of 7:00 am and 8:00 pm for the second 
session of the annual school district meeting to vote by official ballot upon the following subjects: 
 
ELECTION OF OFFICERS (Separate Ballot Vote) 

• To choose two (2) members of the School Board for the ensuing three (3) years 

• To choose one (1) School District Treasurer for the ensuing three (3) years 

• To choose one (1) School District Clerk for the ensuing three (3) years 

• To choose one (1) School District Moderator for the ensuing three (3) years 
 

 
WARRANT ARTICLES 

2023-2024 
 

Warrant Article 1 – DRAFT VERSION 1 
Alvirne High School Renovation 
 
[Passage of this article shall override the 10 percent limitation imposed on this appropriation due to the non-
recommendation of the budget committee.]  Shall the Hudson School District raise and appropriate the sum of 
$27,000,000 for the design, construction, and equipping of additions and renovations to Alvirne High School; and 
authorize the School Board to accept a grant or grants and/or any other federal, state, or other aid which may be 
available for said project; and further authorize the School Board to issue not more than $27,000,000  in bonds or notes 
for the balance of the project costs in accordance with the Municipal Finance Act, (RSA Chapter 33) and authorize the 
School Board to issue, negotiate, sell, and deliver such bonds and notes and to determine the rate of interest thereon 
and the maturity and other terms thereof; and further raise and appropriate the additional sum of $750,000  for the first 
year payment on the bond and authorize the School Board to take any other action necessary to carry out this vote or 
pass any other vote relative thereto? 

 
(3/5 ballot vote required) 
Estimated tax rate impact:  $.16 

Not/Recommended by the Hudson School Board X-X 



 

 

WARRANT ARTICLES 

Not/Recommended by the Budget Committee X-X 
                                                                                                        
 
 
 
Warrant Article 1 – DRAFT VERSION 2 
Alvirne High School Renovation 
 
[Passage of this article shall override the 10 percent limitation imposed on this appropriation due to the non-
recommendation of the budget committee.]  Shall the Hudson School District raise and appropriate the sum of 
$27,000,000 (gross budget) for the design, construction, and equipping of additions and renovations to Alvirne High 
School; and authorize the School Board to accept up to $8,100,000 in School Building Aid from the State of New 
Hampshire; and to accept a grant or grants from any other federal, state, or other aid which may be available for said 
project; and further authorize the School Board to issue not more than $18,900,000  in bonds or notes for the balance of 
the project costs in accordance with the Municipal Finance Act, (RSA Chapter 33) and authorize the School Board to 
issue, negotiate, sell, and deliver such bonds and notes and to determine the rate of interest thereon and the maturity 
and other terms thereof; and further raise and appropriate the additional sum of $475,000  for the first year payment on 
the bond and authorize the School Board to take any other action necessary to carry out this vote or pass any other vote 
relative thereto? 

 
(3/5 ballot vote required) 
Estimated tax rate impact:  $.10 

Not/Recommended by the Hudson School Board X-X 
Not/Recommended by the Budget Committee X-X 

 
Warrant Article 2  
Operating Budget 
 
Shall the Hudson School District vote to raise and appropriate as an operating budget, not including 
appropriations by special warrant article and other appropriations voted separately, the amounts set forth on 
the budget posted with the warrant or as amended by the vote at the first session for the purposes set forth 
therein, totaling $63,392,486?  Should this article be defeated, the operating budget will be $63,748,201 
which is the same as last year with certain adjustments required by previous action of the Hudson School 
District or by law; or the governing body may hold one special meeting under RSA 40:13-X and XVI to take up a 
revised operating budget only. 
 
Estimated tax rate impact:  $.27 
Default tax rate impact:   $.34 
 
Estimated tax rate:  $XX.XX 
Default estimated tax rate:  $XX.XX 

Not/Recommended by the Hudson School Board X-X 
Not/Recommended by the Budget Committee X-X 

 
Warrant Article 3  
Collective Bargaining Agreement between the Hudson School Board and the Hudson Federation of Teachers 



 

 

WARRANT ARTICLES 

 
Shall the Hudson School District vote to approve the cost items in the collective bargaining agreement 
between the Hudson Federation of Teachers, Local 2263 AFT-NH, AFL-CIO and the Hudson School Board which 
calls for the following increases in salaries and benefits at the current staffing levels over the amount paid in 
the prior fiscal year: 

2023-24     $XXX,XXX 
2024-25     $XXX,XXX 
2025-26     $XXX,XXX 

 
and to further raise and appropriate $XXX,XXX for the upcoming fiscal year, such sum representing the 
additional costs attributable to the increase in salaries and benefits required by the new agreement that 
would be paid under current staffing levels. 
 
Estimated tax rate impact:  $.XX 

Not/Recommended by the Hudson School Board X-X 
Not/Recommended by the Budget Committee X-X 

 

Warrant Article 4  
Collective Bargaining Agreement between the Hudson School Board and the Teamsters 
 
Shall the Hudson School District vote to approve the cost items in the collective bargaining agreement 
between the Teamsters Local No. 633 of NH for the Hudson School District Custodians, Electricians, HVAC 
Technicians and Maintenance Staff and the Hudson School Board which calls for the following increases in 
salaries and benefits at the current staffing levels over the amount paid in the prior fiscal year: 

2023-24     $XXX 
2024-25     $XXX 
2025-26     $XXX 

 
and to further raise and appropriate $XXX for the upcoming fiscal year, such sum representing the additional 
costs attributable to the increase in salaries and benefits required by the new agreement that would be paid 
under current staffing levels. 
 
Estimated tax rate impact:  $.XX 

Not/Recommended by the Hudson School Board X-X 
Not/Recommended by the Budget Committee X-X 

 
Warrant Article 5 
Partial Roof Replacement at Library Street Elementary School 
 
Shall the Hudson School District vote to raise and appropriate a sum of $400,000 to replace a section of the 
roof at Library Street Elementary School? 

 
Estimated tax rate impact:  $.08 

Not/Recommended by the Hudson School Board X-X 
Not/Recommended by the Budget Committee X-X 



 

 

WARRANT ARTICLES 

 
Warrant Article 6 
Paving at the SAU Office 
 
Shall the Hudson School District vote to raise and appropriate a sum of $150,000 to repave the driveway and 
parking lot at the SAU Office? 

 
Estimated tax rate impact:  $.03 

Not/Recommended by the Hudson School Board X-X 
Not/Recommended by the Budget Committee X-X 

 
Warrant Article 7 
Band Uniforms for Alvirne High School Marching Band 
 
Shall the Hudson School District vote to raise and appropriate a sum of up to $56,200 to replace 125 Band 
Uniforms for the Alvirne High School Marching Band?  This sum is to come from the June 30 fund balance 
available for transfer on July 1 with no amount to be raised by additional taxation.  This is a special warrant 
article. 

 
Estimated tax rate impact:  $.00 

Not/Recommended by the Hudson School Board X-X 
Not/Recommended by the Budget Committee X-X 

 
Warrant Article 8 
Expand Playground at Dr. H.O. Smith Elementary School 
 
Shall the Hudson School District vote to raise and appropriate a sum of up to $30,000 to expand the 
playground at the Dr. H.O. Smith Elementary School?  This sum is to come from the June 30 fund balance 
available for transfer on July 1 with no amount to be raised by additional taxation.  This is a special warrant 
article. 

 
Estimated tax rate impact:  $.00 

Not/Recommended by the Hudson School Board X-X 
Not/Recommended by the Budget Committee X-X 

 
Warrant Article 9 
Science Labs at Hudson Memorial School 
 
Shall the Hudson School District vote to raise and appropriate a sum of up to $200,000 to upgrade two Science 
Classrooms/Labs at Hudson Memorial School?  This sum is to come from the June 30 fund balance available 
for transfer on July 1 with no amount to be raised by additional taxation.  This is a special warrant article. 

 
Estimated tax rate impact:  $.00 

Not/Recommended by the Hudson School Board X-X 
Not/Recommended by the Budget Committee X-X 



 

 

WARRANT ARTICLES 

 
Warrant Article 10 
Music Instruments at Alvirne High School 
 
Shall the Hudson School District vote to raise and appropriate a sum of up to $27,350 to purchase musical 
instruments for Alvirne High School?  This sum is to come from the June 30 fund balance available for transfer 
on July 1 with no amount to be raised by additional taxation. 

 
Estimated tax rate impact:  $.00 

Not/Recommended by the Hudson School Board X-X 
Not/Recommended by the Budget Committee X-X 

 
Warrant Article 11 
Replace the Chair Lift in the SAU Office 
 
Shall the Hudson School District vote to raise and appropriate a sum of up to $75,000 to replace the chair lift 
in the SAU Office?  This sum is to come from the June 30 fund balance available for transfer on July 1 with no 
amount to be raised by additional taxation.  This is a special warrant article. 

 
Estimated tax rate impact:  $.00 

Not/Recommended by the Hudson School Board X-X 
Not/Recommended by the Budget Committee X-X 

 
Warrant Article 12 
Increasing Funds in the Capital Reserve School Renovation Fund 
 
Shall the Hudson School District vote to raise and appropriate a sum of up to $100,000 to be added to the 
Capital Reserve School Renovation Fund?  This sum is to come from the June 30 fund balance available for 
transfer on July 1 with no amount to be raised by additional taxation. 

 
Estimated tax rate impact:  $.00 

Not/Recommended by the Hudson School Board X-X 
Not/Recommended by the Budget Committee X-X 

 
Warrant Article 13 
Update to the Fund Balance Retention 
 
Shall the Hudson School District adopt the revisions to RSA 198:4-b, II enacted in 2020, which allows the 
District to retain up to 5% of the District’s net assessment in any year, allows the expenditure of any amount 
retained after the School Board first holds a public hearing, and further requires the School Board to include in 
the annual reporting of the retained fund balance in its annual report to the District? 

 
Estimated tax rate impact:  $.00 

Not/Recommended by the Hudson School Board X-X 
Not/Recommended by the Budget Committee X-X 



 

 

WARRANT ARTICLES 

      
 
GIVEN UNDER OUR HANDS AT SAID HUDSON THIS ________ DAY OF JANUARY ________. 
 
     True Copy of Warrant – Attest: 
 
     ______________________________ 
 
     ______________________________ 
 
     ______________________________ 
 
     ______________________________ 
 
     ______________________________ 
 
      Hudson School Board 
 
 



 

Rank SAU District School Name Project Name Section C - Brief Description of Project
Estimated 

Project Cost
SBA 
Rate

Estimated 
Building Aid*

1 54 Rochester Nancy Loud School, School 
Street School

Consolidation - New Elementary 
School 

A new Kindergarten - 5th grade elementary school on a new site to 
alleviate enrollment pressures on two existing elementary schools and to 
enable closure of two of those schools (Nancy Loud School-NL & School 
Street School-SS) due to building physical, security, safety and deficiencies. 
This project will eliminate five modular buildings.

 $       33,618,000 60%  $      20,170,800 

2 7 Colebrook Colebrook Academy & 
Elementary School

Consolidation - Addition to 
Elementary School 

The project is a 28,300 sf addition and 10,000 sf renovation of the existing 
Elementary / Middle School to accommodate the High School population. 
The addition includes relocation of the main administration to a new 
secure entrance, a new Gymnasium, new education space, new and 
renovated CTE Labs, and renovation of the former administration area into 
classroom space.

 $       16,441,247 60%  $        9,864,748 

3 93 Monadnock Emerson, Gilsum, Mt Caesar, 
Troy Elementary School

Consolidation - Additions and 
Renovations to Multiple Elementary 
Schools

This project will close Cutler Elementary School and consolidate all 
Swanzey’ s elementary students onto the Mt Caesar Elementary School 
Site. The other district schools, Emerson Elementary, Gilsum STEAM 
Academy and Troy Elementary will receive additions and renovations to 
bring them all up to current building and educational standards.

 $       35,247,000 55%  $      19,385,850 

4 8 Concord Rundlett Middle School New Elementary School The project is a new 900 student middle school to replace the existing 
Rundlett Middle School that was constructed in 1957 as a junior high 
school with additions in 1967 and 1990. Two sites have been analyzed and 
are under consideration, the existing Rundlett site which the District owns 
and a new site on Clinton Street which is being negotiated for potential 
purchase. 

 $     176,243,428 40%  $      70,497,371 

5 27 Litchfield Griffin Memorial School New Elementary School This project will be a new elementary school on a new site. The facility will 
be approximately 90,000 sq. ft. with approximately a 50,000 sq. foot 
footprint and 40,000 sq. ft. on a second floor.

 $       32,000,000 30%  $        9,600,000 

6 10 Derry Cooperative South Range Elementary, 
Derry Village School

Consolidation - New Elementary 
School

This project will replace two old and outdated schools that have a 
multitude of deficiencies with a new combined elementary school.  It was 
studied that a new school would be a less expensive option and save the 
school district in yearly costs for operation & maintenance.

 $       74,970,567 45%  $      33,736,755 

 
 
 

FY24 & FY25 School Building Aid Applications in Descending Ranked Order Approved by the State Board of Education
 November 10, 2022

25 Hall Street, Concord, NH 03301
Telephone: (603) 271-0955

Page 1 of 3



Rank SAU District School Name Project Name Section C - Brief Description of Project
Estimated 

Project Cost
SBA 
Rate

Estimated 
Building Aid*

7 39 Amherst Clark Wilkins School, Amherst 
Middle School

Consolidation - Addition and 
Renovations to Wilkins School

A significant renovation/addition to the Wilkins School that will house 
grades preschool through grade 5, relocating grade 5 from AMS to the new 
combined Clark-Wilkins School on the Wilkins site, and obviating the need 
to use the Clark School. The Clark-Wilkins Project is almost a complete 
rebuild of the existing school on the existing site. Only the multi-purpose 
room and the kitchen area will be maintained when the new building is 
built. 

 $       54,250,179 30%  $      16,275,054 

8 55 Hampstead Hampstead Central School Addition and Renovation The project will add two new two-story structures to house administration 
and a nurse's office, library media space, four classrooms, two code-
compliant staircase for egress. Certain existing spaces will be remodeled to 
create a classroom, and academic and special education support areas, 40 
year old septic and leach fields will be relocated, and the building's water 
supply will be upgraded to support fire suppression.

 $         7,500,000 30%  $        2,250,000 

9 81 Hudson Alvirne High School Addition and Renovation This project includes 4 parts: 1. Safety & security updates to match 
Homeland Security recommendations (included cafeteria spaces). 2. Safer 
site conditions for drop-off, pick-up, and parking. 3. New student 
auditorium and renovated music space for better accessibility. 4. Energy 
efficient mechanical upgrades to gym and locker room spaces.

 $       29,500,000 30%  $        8,850,000 

10 86 Barnstead Barnstead Elementary School Addition and Renovation Barnstead Elementary School serves grades pre-K - 8 and lacks enough 
classrooms and unified arts classroom space to adequately meet the needs 
of its elementary school students or to provide an approved middle school 
program.  The school would like to renovate most of its existing building 
and build an addition for unified arts programs, science labs and additional 
classroom spaces.

 $       23,398,200 45%  $      10,529,190 

11 48 Thornton Thornton Central School Addition and Renovation The TCS building project is a renovation of existing building to upgrade fire 
alarm panel, sprinkler, generator, controls, HVAC (oil to
propane), lighting, bathrooms, gym, data, security, parking, and bus drop 
off/pick up zones. The new addition will allow for special
education spaces, cafeteria, kitchen, mechanical room moved from 
interior of the building to an outside wall, single occupancy
bathrooms, art, tech/STEM, and music spaces.

 $       17,139,816 40%  $        6,855,926 

12 77 Monroe Monroe Consolidated School Addition and Renovation The proposed project is for an addition of a secure entryway to control 
and limit access to students and staff to only those who have been vetted 
and have a need to enter the building. Renovate existing spaces within the 
building to correct services being held in inefficient/unsuitable rooms and 
to increase the privacy of services and administrative areas.

 $         2,203,085 30%  $           660,926 

13 65 Kearsarge Regional Kearsarge Regional High 
School

Addition and Renovation The project includes approximately 16,000 sf of building additions (one 
story) for a new tech ed, STEAM, culinary arts and administration 
programs/functions plus approximately 29,000 sf of interior 
reconfiguration renovation of the existing building for music, art, general 
classrooms, learning commons, locker rooms, administrative and support 
spaces plus infrastructure renovations for portions of the remaining 
school.

 $       24,505,623 32%  $        7,841,799 

Page 2 of 3



Rank SAU District School Name Project Name Section C - Brief Description of Project
Estimated 

Project Cost
SBA 
Rate

Estimated 
Building Aid*

14 41 Brookline Richard Maghakian Memorial 
School

Addition and Renovation Richard Maghakian Memorial School needs significant upgrades to their 
HVAC systems which are at the end of useful life. Based on enrollment 
projections the school will also need to add instructional classroom spaces 
to meet the projected growth outlined by the recent NESDEC study. The 
building project will include any updates required to meet current fire, 
security and building code regulations.

 $       12,001,000 30%  $        3,600,300 

15 41 Hollis Brookline Hollis Brookline Middle School Addition and Renovation Hollis Brookline Middle School needs significant upgrades to their HVAC 
systems which are at the end of useful life. The middle school is also in 
need of additional educational space based on both enrollment 
projections as well as instructional goals related to STEM and robotics 
educational programming. The learning commons at the middle school is 
in need of reconfiguration to better meet the educational needs of our 
current and future students. Security issues will also be addressed.

 $         8,850,000 30%  $        2,655,000 

16 41 Hollis Brookline Hollis Brookline High School Addition and Renovation Hollis Brookline High School needs significant upgrades to their HVAC 
systems which are at the end of useful life. The high school is also in need 
of additional educational space based on both enrollment projections as 
well as District instructional goals related to STEM and robotics 
educational programming. The high school cafeteria is undersized for the 
current population and will need to be expanded to address the 
anticipated increase in enrollment. Security issues will also be addressed.

 $         8,225,000 30%  $        2,467,500 

17 41 Brookline Captain Samuel Douglass 
Academy

Addition and Renovation Captain Samuel Douglass Academy needs upgrades to their HVAC and 
building control systems that are at their end of life. Based on enrollment 
projections, the school will also need instructional classroom spaces to 
meet the projections outlined in the NESDEC study. The building project 
will also include any required upgrades to meet current fire, security and 
building code regulations.

 $         8,254,000 30%  $        2,476,200 

Totals 564,347,145$       $   227,717,420 
  

*Please note that the Estimated Building Aid listed is not a guarantee of funding. This is an estimate of what the school building aid could be, based solely upon the estimated cost of the project and the district's school 
building aid rate. Any school building aid award will be based upon this ranking, the total State appropriation available, and the eligibility of project costs.

Page 3 of 3



Superintendent Goals 

2022-2023 

 

Goal 1: As the new Superintendent, I will engage in meaningful engagement with 

families and the community. 

Evidence of accomplishment: 

• Attending PTO meetings 

• Attending school events and community events 

• Budget Committee meetings 

• Participate in HCTV shows  

• Engage with Town Departments (Police Department, Fire Department, 

Department of Public Works, Recreation Department) 

• Engage with business partners including attending Chamber of Commerce 

meetings. 

Goal 2: Continue to foster the safety and social and emotional wellness of the 

schools for students. 

Evidence of accomplishment: 

• Develop multi-tiered systems of support to social and emotional wellness 

for students 

• Pilot social and emotional assessment for students in certain grades 

Goal 3: Assess and evaluate school district systems and processes for 

improvement and efficiency. 

Evidence of accomplishment:  

• Policy Manuals for administration 

• Updates to policies including an annual review process for all policies 

• System for updating policies on the website 

• Increase communication between schools and districts with families, 

students, and the community 



Goal 4: Improve the budget process for increased transparency and voter 

approval of school district budget and warrant articles. 

Evidence of accomplishment: 

• Develop a Teacher/Staff report to review all personnel needs for the district 

• Articulate the need to support teachers’ contract to retain teachers and 

commensurate salaries to hire teachers. 

• Review grant funding sources, including review and budget plan for ESSER 

III funds that end in 2024 

• Community forums for Alvirne High School project 

• Work with School Board and Budget Committee to highlight increases in 

budget account lines 

Goal 5: Articulate curriculum, instruction, and assessment priorities for the school 

district to improve students’ academic success. 

Evidence of accomplishment: 

• Increase in State Assessment results in reading, writing, mathematics, and 

science by 3%-5% 

• Increase in i-Ready Assessment results in all grades by 3%-5% 

• Increase graduation rates to 100% 

• Create assessment reports to the School Board to demonstrate academic 

progress and goals for improvement 

• Review and articulate multi-tiered systems of support for reading and 

mathematics 

o This will include an inventory of current reading interventions and 

math interventions 

o Add specific interventions to improve reading fluency, 

comprehension, and vocabulary acquisition 

o Add specific interventions to improve mathematics computation, 

problem solving, and math application 

 



BHE School Board Use of Email Page 1 of 2 

 HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT POLICY 
 
 

BHE School Board Use of Email 
Updated: NHSBA version for School Board Second Reading – November 21, 2022, replaces current policy 
Related policies: BEAB & EHB 
Category: Recommended 
 
A. General 

Use of electronic communications by members of the Board shall conform to the same standards of 
judgment, propriety, and ethics as other forms of School Board-related communication.  
 
For purposes of this section, “electronic communications” includes, without limitation, electronic 
mail ("email"), electronic chat, instant messaging, texting, and any form of social networking that 
allows two-way comment/input. 
 
Electronic communications among a quorum of the School Board, shall not be used for the purpose 
of discussing School District or School Board business.  
 
Board members shall avoid reference to confidential information about staff, students or other 
individuals. Intentional disclosure of such information may subject a board member to individual 
liability and may constitute a violation of the oath of office. 
 

B. Applicability of New Hampshire's Right to Know Law 

1. Meetings 
With very limited exceptions, New Hampshire's "Right to Know" law, RSA 91-A, requires that 
public bodies (e.g., the school board, and any of its sub- or advisory committees) conduct 
deliberations and decision-making during duly noticed meetings that the public may attend.   
 
Under RSA 91-A:2, I, a “meeting” occurs when a quorum of a public body discusses (in any 
manner that allows for contemporaneous communication) a matter over which that public body 
has supervision, control, jurisdiction, or advisory power.  Thus, any electronic communication 
discussing district or school business that circulates among a majority of a quorum of the board 
could constitute a meeting and a violation of the Right to Know law. 

 
As to social media especially, board members must exercise great care to assure less than a 
quorum ever comments on a post or thread regarding school business. 

 
2. Ministerial Communications 

Administrative or ministerial communications which do not include substantive discussion are 
not prohibited by the Right to Know law or this policy.  Examples of permitted ministerial 
communications, electronic or otherwise, include: 

• Agenda item suggestions (with no discussion of substance) 

• Reminders for upcoming meetings 

• Communications needed to schedule meetings 

https://campussuite-storage.s3.amazonaws.com/prod/1559099/2daf64be-7eca-11ec-a76b-021f64618557/2395227/f53e758e-b02e-11ec-9c2b-0edc3f82e32d/file/BHE%20School%20Board%20Use%20of%20Email.pdf


BHE School Board Use of Email Page 2 of 2 

• Board meeting agendas with supporting materials 

 
3. Electronic Communications as Records 

Any written communication (including electronic communications) created, accepted, or 
obtained by or on behalf of the School Board or a majority/quorum thereof constitute a "record" 
of the district.  Such records are subject to disclosure unless exempted under RSA 91-A:5 or other 
law.  Likewise, electronic communications are subject to the district's record retention policies 
and schedule. EHB and EHB-R. 

 
 
 
Legal References 

RSA 91-A:2-a, Communications Outside Meetings 
RSA 189:29-a, Records Retention and Disposition 
Miller v. Fremont School Board, Rockingham County Superior Court, No. 03-E-152 (2003) 

 
 
Adopted: November 18, 2019 
First Reading: November 7, 2022 
Second Reading: 
Adopted or Reviewed 
 
 
 

 

https://z2policy.ctspublish.com/policy/
https://z2policy.ctspublish.com/policy/


   

 

HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT  

POLICY CODE: BHE School Board Use of 

Email 

 

RELATED POLICIES: [Related Policy Codes] 

FIRST ADOPTION:  11/18/2019 

  

LATEST REVISION: [Latest Revision] 

Page 1 of 1 

 

Category R 

The Board encourages its members to not communicate to each other via electronic 

communication (e-mail) regarding official school district business.  The Board will not use 

e-mail as a substitute for deliberations at board meetings, for other communications, or for 

business properly confined to board meetings.  Communications via e-mail of private or 

confidential school district matters is strictly prohibited. 

If an e-mail is originated by a Board member, is communicated to a quorum of the Board, and 

discusses official school district business, the e-mail will be considered a public document for 

purposes of the Right to Know Law, RSA 91-A.  As such, the contents of the email 

communication will be publicly disclosed and included in the minutes of the next regularly 

scheduled Board meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Legal references: 

RSA 91-A:2-a, Communications Outside Meetings 

RSA 189:29-a, Records Retention and Disposition 

Miller v. Fremont School Board, Rockingham County Superior Court, No. 03-E-152 

(2003) 

 

 



Hudson School District Policy EEAEA Mandatory Drug and Alcohol Testing Page 1 of total 

HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT POLICY 
 
 

EEAEA Mandatory Drug and Alcohol Testing 
Updated: Current policy with NHSBA 2021 Revisions, School Board Second Reading – November 21, 
2022 
Category: Required by law 
 
 

1. Statement of Policy   

The School Board believes that the safety of students while being transported to and from school or 
school activities is of utmost importance and is the primary responsibility of the driver of the vehicle.  
 
This policy applies to two categories of drivers: 
a.   School bus drivers (see RSA 189:13-b; 263:29 & 29-a) 
b.   “Contracted carriers”: drivers of vehicles designed to transport 16 or more passengers, including 

the driver, which are a contract carrier of passengers that has been contracted by the school (see 
RSA 376:2) 

 
Each driver, as well as others who perform safety-sensitive functions with commercial vehicles that 
transport students, must be mentally and physically alert at all times while on duty. To that end, the 
Board has established this policy related to the fitness for duty of transportation personnel.   
 
The Superintendent/designee shall adopt and enact any procedures necessary or appropriate to 
assure compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations. 
 

2. Medical Examination of School Bus Operators   

In accordance with RSA 200:37, before employing any person as a school bus operator, directly or 
through a vendor, the School District shall require that such persons submit a certificate signed by a 
licensed physician setting forth the physician’s findings as a result of the examination to determine 
the physical condition of drivers in accordance with the requirements of 49 C.F.R. Part 391.41-
391.49.  Such certificate shall be submitted to the School District prior to the commencement of such 
employment and the District shall retain a copy of such certification. Every 2 years thereafter, either 
prior to the commencement of the school year or prior to the reemployment of such persons as a 
school bus operator, the School District shall require submission of a like certificate, except that 
school bus operators attaining the age of 70 shall be required to undergo an annual examination and 
to submit a certificate annually.  This provision does not apply to contracted carriers. 
 

3. School Bus Driver’s Certificate   

No person shall be employed as a school bus operator, directly or through a vendor, unless the 
person has received a School Bus Driver’s Certificate from the NH Department of Motor Vehicles as 
required by RSA 263:29.  
 
Contracted carriers shall comply with all applicable provisions of RSA 376:2, as well as have a valid 
commercial driver's license and operate a vehicle with a valid state inspection sticker. 
 
 



Hudson School District Policy EEAEA Mandatory Drug and Alcohol Testing Page 2 of total 

4. Criminal Background Investigation   

Before employing any person as a school bus operator, directly or through a vendor, the School 
District shall require a criminal background investigation as set forth in RSA 189:13-a and School 
District policy GBCD. If the school bus operators are employed directly by the District, then the 
employee will pay for the investigation. If the District contracts with a vendor to provide student 
transportation services, either the vendor or the bus operator will pay for the investigation at the 
discretion of the vendor.   
 

5. Mandatory Drug and Alcohol Testing   

In compliance with the United States Department of Transportation’s Title 49 Code of Federal 
Regulations, Part 391, all commercial driver’s license (CDL) holders and personnel performing safety-
sensitive functions related to the transportation of the students of this School District will be 
required to submit to drug and alcohol testing. Testing procedures and facilities used for the tests 
shall conform to the requirements of the 49 C.F.R. Part 40. The District and any transportation 
contractor transporting students on behalf of the District shall utilize the Drug and Alcohol 
Clearinghouse to comply with all requirements for drug and alcohol testing and reporting, in 
accordance with 49 C.F.R. Parts 382 and 391. 
 
The term “CDL holder” means someone who is required as part of their job duties to hold a 
Commercial Driver’s License. The term “safety-sensitive function” refers to all tasks associated with 
the operation and maintenance of commercial vehicles. A “commercial vehicle” is any vehicle 
capable of carrying 16 or more passengers including the driver.   
 
If the School District employs the transportation personnel directly, the District will be responsible 
for ensuring compliance with the Mandatory Drug and Alcohol Testing requirements. If the School 
District contracts with a vendor to provide student transportations services, the vendor shall be the 
employer and provide assurance to the District on an annual basis that they are in compliance with 
the Mandatory Drug and Alcohol Testing requirements.   
 
The Drug and Alcohol Testing will include pre-employment, random, reasonable suspicion and post-
accident testing as defined by Department of Labor Regulations. The School District supports a zero-
tolerance policy related to substance abuse. Therefore, any personnel who have a confirmed 
positive test for drugs or a confirmed alcohol concentration of 0.02 or greater will be terminated 
from employment.   
 

 
 
 
Legal References 

Omnibus Transportation Employee Testing Act of 1991, 49 U.S.C. §5331 
RSA 200:37, Medical Examination of School Bus Operators 
RSA 263:29, School Bus Driver's Certificate 
RSA 189:13-a, School Employee & Volunteer Background Investigations 
RSA 376:2, VII, Motor Carriage of Passengers 
49 C.F.R. § 40.1-40.13 (2001), Transportation Workplace Drug Testing Program 
49 C.F.R. Part 382, Controlled Substances and Alcohol Use and Testing 
 



Hudson School District Policy EEAEA Mandatory Drug and Alcohol Testing Page 3 of total 

49 C.F.R. Part 391, Qualifications of Drivers 
 
Note: Citations have been updated 
 
 
Adopted: March 2, 2020 
First Reading: November 7, 2022 
Second Reading 
Updated: 
 
 
 

 



Hudson School District EHAB Data Governance and Security Page 1 of total 

HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT POLICY 
 
 

EHAB Data Governance and Security  
Updated: Current policy with NHSBA revisions, School Board Second Reading – November 21, 2022 
Related policies: EHAA, EHB, GBEBD, GBEF, IHBH, JICJ, JICL, JICM, KD, & KDC 
Category: Priority/Required by Law 
 
To accomplish the District's mission and comply with the law, the District must collect, create and store 
information. Accurately maintaining and protecting this data is important for efficient District 
operations, compliance with laws mandating confidentiality, and maintaining the trust of the District's 
stakeholders. All persons who have access to District data are required to follow state and federal law, 
District policies and procedures, and other rules created to protect the information. 
 
The provisions of this policy shall supersede and take precedence over any contrary provisions of any 
other policy adopted prior to the date of this policy. 
 
A. Definitions 

Confidential Data/Information – Information that the District is prohibited by law, policy or contract 
from disclosing or that the District may disclose only in limited circumstances. Confidential data 
includes, but is not limited to, personally identifiable information regarding students and employees. 
 
Critical Data/Information – Information that is determined to be essential to District operations and 
that must be accurately and securely maintained to avoid disruption to District operations. Critical 
data is not necessarily confidential. 
 
Cybersecurity Incident – an occurrence that actually or potentially jeopardizes the confidentiality, 
integrity, or availability of an information system or the information processes, stores, or transmits, 
if that constitutes a violation or imminent threat of violation of security policies, security procedures, 
or acceptable use policies. 

 
B. Data and Privacy Governance Plan - Administrative Procedures 

1. Data Governance Plan. The Superintendent, in consultation with the District Information Security 
Officer (ISO) (see paragraph C, below) shall create a Data and Privacy Governance Plan ("Data 
Governance Plan"). Annually, the Superintendent, in consultation with the ISO, shall update the 
Data Governance Plan for presentation to the Board no later than June 30. 

 
The Data Governance Plan shall include: 
a. An inventory of all software applications, digital tools, and extensions. The inventory shall 

include users of the applications, the provider, purpose, publisher, privacy statement, and 
terms of use 

b. A review of all software applications, digital tools, and extensions and an assurance that they 
meet or exceed minimum standards set by the New Hampshire Department of Education 

c. Policies and procedures for access to data and protection of privacy for students and staff 
including acceptable use policy for applications, digital tools, and district installed extensions 
used on District hardware, server(s) or through the District network(s) 

d. A response plan for any breach of information /cybersecurity incidents; see RSA 31:103-b and 



Hudson School District EHAB Data Governance and Security Page 2 of total 

RSA 359-C:19-21 
e. A requirement for a service provider to meet or exceed standards for data protection and 

privacy 
 

The Data Governance Plan shall include standards and provisions that meet or exceed the 
standards set forth in the N.H. Dept. of Education’s Minimum Standards for Privacy and Security 
of Student and Employee Data. 

 
2. Policies and Administrative Procedures. The Superintendent, in consultation with the ISO, is 

directed to review, modify and recommend (policies) create (administrative procedures), where 
necessary, relative to collecting, securing, and correctly disposing of District data (including, but 
not limited to Confidential and Critical Data/Information, and as otherwise necessary to 
implement this policy and the Data Governance Plan. Such policies and/or procedures will may or 
may not be included in the annual Data Governance Plan. 

 

C. Information Security Officer 

The Director of Technology is hereby designated as the District's Information Security Officer (ISO) 
and reports directly to the Superintendent or designee. The ISO is responsible for implementing and 
enforcing the District's security policies and administrative procedures applicable to digital and other 
electronic data, and suggesting changes to these policies, the Data Governance Plan, and procedures 
to better protect the confidentiality and security of District data. The ISO will work with both the 
District and building level administrators and data managers (paragraph E, below) to advocate for 
resources, including training, to best secure the District's data.  
 
The Superintendent of Schools will be designated as the District's alternate ISO and will assume the 
responsibilities of the ISO when the ISO is not available.  
 

D. Responsibility and Data Stewardship 

All District employees, volunteers and agents are responsible for accurately collecting, maintaining 
and securing District data including, but not limited to, confidential and/or critical data/information. 
 

E. Data Managers 

All District administrators are data managers for all data collected, maintained, used and 
disseminated under their supervision as well as data they have been assigned to manage in the 
District's data inventory. Data managers will monitor employee access to the information to ensure 
that confidential information is accessed only by employees who need the information to provide 
services to the District and that confidential and critical information is modified only by authorized 
employees. Data managers will assist the ISO in enforcing District policies and procedures regarding 
data management. 
 

F. Confidential and Critical Information 

The District will collect, create or store confidential information only when the Superintendent or 
designee determines it is necessary, and in accordance with applicable law. The District will provide 
access to confidential information to appropriately trained District employees and volunteers only 
when the District determines that such access is necessary for the performance of their duties. The 
District will disclose confidential information only to authorized District contractors or agents who 



Hudson School District EHAB Data Governance and Security Page 3 of total 

need access to the information to provide services to the District and who agree not to disclose the 
information to any other party except as allowed by law and authorized by the District. 
 
District employees, contractors and agents will notify the ISO or designee immediately if there is 
reason to believe confidential information has been disclosed to an unauthorized person or any 
information has been compromised, whether intentionally or otherwise.  
 
The Superintendent and/or the ISO shall immediately report any known or suspected cybersecurity 
incidents within the District’s information systems, or within an information system of any vendor of 
the District, to the New Hampshire Cyber Integration Center of the Department of Information 
Technology. The Superintendent and/or the ISO shall disclose all known information and 
interactions. See RSA 31:103-b. 
 
The ISO or designee will investigate immediately and take any action necessary to secure the 
information, issue all required legal notices and prevent future incidents. When necessary, the 
Superintendent, ISO or designee is authorized to secure resources to assist the District in promptly 
and appropriately addressing a security breach. 
 
As a part of this investigation, the ISO or designee will promptly determine the likelihood that any 
information part of a cybersecurity incident has been or will be misused. If the determination is that 
the misuse of information has occurred or is reasonably likely to occur, or if a determination cannot 
be made, the ISO will notify the affected individuals as soon as possible, consistent with the 
notification requirements under RSA 359-C:20. 
 
Likewise, the District will take steps to ensure that critical information is secure and is not 
inappropriately altered, deleted, destroyed or rendered inaccessible. Access to critical information 
will only be provided to authorized individuals in a manner that keeps the information secure. 
 
All District staff, volunteers, contractors and agents who are granted access to critical or confidential 
information/data are required to keep the information secure and are prohibited from disclosing or 
assisting in the unauthorized disclosure of such confidential or critical data/information. All 
individuals using confidential and critical data/information will strictly observe all administrative 
procedures, policies and other protections put into place by the District including, but not limited to, 
maintaining information in locked rooms or drawers, limiting access to electronic files, updating and 
maintaining the confidentiality of password protections, encrypting and redacting information, and 
disposing of information no longer needed in a confidential and secure manner. 
 

G. Using Online Services and Applications 

District staff members are encouraged to research and utilize online services or applications to 
engage students and further the District's education mission. District employees, however, are 
prohibited from installing or using applications, programs or other software, or online 
system/website, that either stores, collects or shares confidential or critical data/information, until 
the ISO approves the vendor and the software or service used. Before approving the use or purchase 
of any such software or online service, the ISO or designee shall verify that it meets the 
requirements of the law, Board policy, and the Data Governance Plan, and that it appropriately 
protects confidential and critical data/information. This prior approval is also required whether or 
not the software or online service is obtained or used without charge. 



Hudson School District EHAB Data Governance and Security Page 4 of total 

 
H. Training 

The ISO will provide appropriate training to employees who have access to confidential or critical 
information to prevent unauthorized disclosures or breaches in security. All school employees will 
receive annual training in the confidentiality of student records, and the requirements of this policy 
and related procedures and rules. 
 

I. Data Retention and Deletion 

The ISO or designee shall establish a retention schedule for the regular archiving and deletion of data 
stored on District technology resources. The retention schedule should comply with, and be 
incorporated [by reference] into the data/record retention schedule established under Board policy 
EHB and administrative procedure EHB-R], including but not limited to, provisions relating to 
Litigation and Right to Know holds as described in Board policy EHB].   
 
 

J. Consequences 

Employees who fail to follow the law or District policies or procedures regarding data governance 
and security (including failing to report) may be disciplined, up to and including termination. 
Volunteers may be excluded from providing services to the District. The District will end business 
relationships with any contractor who fails to follow the law, District policies or procedures, or the 
confidentiality provisions of any contract. In addition, the District reserves the right to seek all other 
legal remedies, including criminal and civil action and seeking discipline of an employee's teaching 
certificate. 
 
The District may suspend all access to data or use of District technology resources pending an 
investigation. Violations may result in temporary, long-term or permanent suspension of user 
privileges. The District will cooperate with law enforcement in investigating any unlawful actions. 
The Superintendent or designee has the authority to sign any criminal complaint on behalf of the 
District. 
 
Any attempted violation of District policies, procedures or other rules will result in the same 
consequences, regardless of the success of the attempt. 
 
 
 
 
 

Legal References 
15 U.S.C. §§ 6501-6506 * Children’s Online Privacy Protection Act (COPPA) 
20 U.S.C. § 1232g * Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
20 U.S.C. § 1232h * Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment (PPRA) 
20 U.S.C. § 1400-1417 * Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) 
20 U.S.C. § 7926 * Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESSA) 
RSA 189:65 * Definitions 
RSA 186:66 * Student Information Protection and Privacy 
RSA 189:67 * Limits on Disclosure of Information 
RSA 189:68 * Student Privacy 



Hudson School District EHAB Data Governance and Security Page 5 of total 

RSA 189:68-a * Student Online Personal Information 
RSA 359-C:19-21 * Right to Privacy/Notice of Security Breach 

 
 
Additional Resources 

N.H. Dept. of Education Minimum Standards for Privacy and Security of Student and Employee Data: 
https://www.education.nh.gov/sites/g/files/ehbemt326/files/inline-documents/minimum-standards-

privacy.pdf  (Link as of 2022.8.1) 

 
 
Adopted: August 26, 2019 
First Reading: November 7, 2022 
Second Reading: 
Updated: 
 
 
 

 

https://www.education.nh.gov/sites/g/files/ehbemt326/files/inline-documents/minimum-standards-privacy.pdf
https://www.education.nh.gov/sites/g/files/ehbemt326/files/inline-documents/minimum-standards-privacy.pdf


GBCD Background and Criminal Records  Page 1 of 6 

HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT POLICY 
 
 

GBCD Background Investigation and Criminal Records 
Updated: NHSBA version for School Board Second Reading – November21, 2022, replaces current policy 
Related Policies: EEAE, EEAEA, GBCE, GDF, and IJOC 
Category: Priority/Required by law 
 

To help assure the safety of District students, it is the policy of the Hudson School Board that before any 
person is employed by the School District, or are otherwise placed into positions whereby they have 
frequent close contact with - or supervision of - students, that the administration conducts proper 
investigation into such person’s background, including, without limitation, a criminal history records 
check under RSA 189:13-a – 189:13-c.  
 
A. Definitions  

As used in this policy:  
1. Applicant shall mean and include an applicant for employment or any person seeking to serve in 

any position falling within the term “Covered Person” as defined below, who is selected by the 
district for further consideration for such position.  
 

2. Background investigation means an investigation into the past employment and other 
background of an Applicant with the intent of determining whether:  

• The applicant/covered person is qualified for the position for which he/she has applied, 
will/would be assigned, or will/would perform, and 

• The applicant has been found guilty of any criminal activity or conduct that would make 
him/her ineligible for employment or service in the district. 
 

3. Conditional offer of employment means an offer of employment extended to a selected 
Applicant subject to a successful completed criminal history record check (defined below) which 
is satisfactory to the SAU or school district.  
 

4. Contractor means a private business or agency or an employee or employees of the contractor 
which contracts with a SAU, school district, or charter school to provide services including but 
not limited to:  

• cafeteria workers 

• school bus drivers  

• custodial personnel 

• any other direct service or services to students of the district or charter school 
 

5. Covered Person shall mean every employee, stipended position (e.g., coach, trainer, drama 
coach, etc.), candidate, designated volunteer (whether direct or through a volunteer 
organization), or any other service where the contractor or employees of the contractor provide 
services directly to students of the district, or any applicant/person seeking to serve in any of 
those positions. NOTE: Only those volunteers who meet the definition of “Designated Volunteer” 
below are considered “Covered “Employees”. See Board policy IJOC for additional provisions 
relating to all volunteers. All Covered Persons are required to undergo training as provided in 
Board policy GBCE.  

https://campussuite-storage.s3.amazonaws.com/prod/1559099/2daf64be-7eca-11ec-a76b-021f64618557/2395325/b7ee1724-b02f-11ec-ad9e-0edc3f82e32d/file/GBCD%20Background%20Investigation%20and%20Criminal%20Records.pdf


GBCD Background and Criminal Records  Page 2 of 6 

 
6. Criminal History Records Check or CHRC means a criminal history records inquiry under RSA 

189:13-a – 13-c, conducted by the New Hampshire State Police through its records and through 
the Federal Bureau of Investigation.  
 

7. Designated Volunteer is any volunteer who:  

• Comes in direct contact with students on a predictable basis (e.g., library volunteer, 
[overnight] field trip chaperone 

• Meets regularly with students (e.g., community mentor, volunteer assistant coach);  

• Meets with students on a one-on-one basis [without the presence of a teacher or other 
such professional staff member] OR  

• Any other volunteer so designated by the School Board or Superintendent  
The administrative supervisor for the applicable activity or program (e.g., building principal, 
athletic director), shall have the responsibility of determining whether a volunteer position is a 
“Designated Volunteer,” subject to any additional rules or procedures established by the 
Superintendent.  

 
8. Educator Candidate means a student at an institution of higher education in New Hampshire 

who has been selected to participate in a K-12 educator preparation program (RSA 189:13-c, 
I(b)). This definition includes both Educator Candidates who are placed as student teachers in the 
district, and those who might be in the district for a different purpose (e.g., Methods, etc.).  
 

9. Section V Offense(s) are those criminal offenses listed in RSA 189:13-a, V, as that list may be 
amended by the Legislature from time to time. The current of offenses may be accessed at:  
http://www.gencourt.state.nh.us/rsa/html/XV/189/189-13-a.htm  
“Non-Section V Offenses” are all other crimes offenses, whether felonies or misdemeanors.  
 

10. Designee shall mean, a person designated by the Superintendent to receive and inspect results 
of the Criminal History Records Check. Under RSA 189:13-a, II, the Designee for purposes of CHRC 
may only be an assistant superintendent, head of human resources, the personnel director, the 
business administrator or the finance director. 
 

B.  Background Investigation  
The Superintendent will require a Background Investigation of any Applicant or Covered Person as 
defined in this policy. The Superintendent may assign the Background Investigation (but not the 
CHRC) to someone other than designee but shall be completed prior to making a final offer of 
employment, approving the contract with an individual contracting directly with the district, student 
teacher, or a Designated Volunteer to work or serve within the district. For Covered Persons who are 
employed by a third-party contractor or assigned as a Designated Volunteer by a volunteer agency, 
the Superintendent or Designee may waive the Background Investigation and instead rely on suitable 
assurances from the contracting company or agency regarding a background investigation. The 
requirement for a Criminal History Records Check under paragraph D, below, however, may not be 
waived. All decisions regarding employment and the pre-employment process shall conform to the 
District’s Anti-Discrimination and Equal Opportunity policy, AC.  

 
As part of the application process, each Applicant shall be asked whether he/she has ever been 
convicted of any crime and whether there are any criminal charges pending against him/her at the 

http://www.gencourt.state.nh.us/rsa/html/XV/189/189-13-a.htm


GBCD Background and Criminal Records  Page 3 of 6 

time of application. The Applicant will also be directed to report any criminal charges brought 
against him or her after the application is submitted and until either hired or until notified that s/he 
will not be hired. Failure to report will be treated in the same manner as falsification of information 
under Section C, below.  

 
General record of completion of a Background Investigation (but not copies of the results of a CHRC) 
shall be retained in an employee’s personnel file and retained pursuant to the District’s Record 
Retention Schedule EHB-R.  

 
C. False Information 

 The falsification or omission of any information on a job application, during the pendency of the 
application, or in a job interview, including, but not limited to, information concerning criminal 
convictions or pending criminal charges, shall be grounds for disqualification from consideration for 
employment, withdrawal of any offer of employment, or immediate discharge from employment.  

 
D. Criminal History Records Check 
 

1. General 
 As part of the District’s Background Investigation, each Applicant must submit to a Criminal 
History Records Check (“CHRC”) through the State of New Hampshire in full compliance with RSA 
189:13-a. No Covered Person/Applicant shall be employed, extended a Conditional Offer of 
Employment, or begin service in the district, until the Superintendent, or his/her designee, has 
initiated a CHRC.  
 
The Applicant shall provide the district with a criminal history records release form as provided 
by the New Hampshire State Police along with a full set of fingerprints taken by a qualified law 
enforcement agency according to RSA 189:13-a, II.  
  
Refusal to provide the required criminal history records release form (with fingerprints) and any 
other required releases to authorize the CHRC will result in immediate disqualification of the 
Applicant/Covered Person and will not be considered for the position.   
 

2. Special Provisions for Educator Candidates, Bus Drivers & Bus Monitors [and Substitutes] 

• Educator Candidate. Educator Candidates who are placed in the district as a student 
teacher shall undergo a CHRC prior to beginning in the district. For Educator Candidates in 
the District under a status other than student teacher (e.g., observation, Methods Course 
or Practicum student), the Superintendent or Designee will determine whether to require 
a CHRC using the same parameters included in the Designated Volunteer definition, 
above.  

• Bus Drivers and Bus Monitors. Pursuant to RSA 189:13-a, VI and RSA 189:13-b, criminal 
history records checks for bus drivers and bus monitors shall be processed through the 
New Hampshire Department of Education (“NHED”). Although NHED will conduct the 
CHRC, the Superintendent or designee shall require a Background Investigation in 
accordance with paragraph B.  
 

  



GBCD Background and Criminal Records  Page 4 of 6 

3. Results of Criminal History Records Check 
The results of the CHRC shall be delivered to the Superintendent or designee who shall be 
responsible for maintaining their confidentiality. The Superintendent or Designee shall destroy all 
results and reports of any CHRC within sixty (60) days of receiving said information. 
 

4. Pending Charges or Convictions for Section V Offenses 
 If the results of the CHRC disclose that the Applicant has either been convicted of or is charged 
pending disposition of a violation or attempted violation of a Section V offense, that person shall 
not receive an offer or final offer of employment. Additionally, the Superintendent (not the 
Superintendent’s Designee), shall notify NHED through its Investigator or the Chief of the 
Governance Unit or as otherwise directed by NHED.  
 

5. Non-Section V Offenses and/or Past Charges of Section V Offenses  
If the results of a CHRC disclose that the Applicant has been charged (whether pending or 
previously concluded) with a Non-Section V Offense, or has been previously charged with a 
Section V Offense which the charge has been disposed of other than by a conviction, the 
Superintendent or Designee shall take such information into account prior to hiring or assigning 
such Applicant. In making a determination regarding such an Applicant, the Superintendent or 
Designee shall consider all reliable information, and assess whether, in light of the totality of the 
circumstances, the Applicant’s suitability for the position sought with student safety being the 
priority consideration. (Circumstances the Superintendent should consider, include, but are not 
limited to, nature and date of the charge, information about reduced charges, age at time of 
charge, relationship of the nature of the charged offense to the duties of the position sought),  
 
If the Superintendent chooses to nominate, appoint or assign an Applicant who has a history of 
conviction or pending charges of a Non-Section V Offense, or of past concluded charges of 
Section V Offenses that did not result in a conviction, then the final hiring decision or 
appointment of another Covered Person must be approved by the School Board. The 
Superintendent may share to the Board in non-public session general information about the 
offense/conviction but is prohibited under RSA 189:13-a from sharing the CHRC report.  
    

6. Fees for Criminal History Records Check. Any applicant for whom the Board requires a CHRC 
check, or, in the instance of third-party contractors/organizations, the Covered Person’s 
employer/organization, shall pay the actual fees and costs associated with the fingerprinting 
process and/or the submission or processing of the CHRC, unless otherwise determined by the 
Board.  

 
7. Additional Criminal Records Checks. To the extent permitted by law, the Superintendent or 

Designee may require a CHRC of any Covered Person at any time after hire or appointment to a 
position within the district.  
 

E. Conditional Offer of Employment  
Applicants who have been selected for employment may be given a conditional offer of employment, 
with the final offer subject to the successful completion of the Background Investigation and CHRC, 
and a determination that there are no disqualifying pending charges or convictions.  

 
Any Applicant who is offered conditional employment, by way of individual contract or other type of 



GBCD Background and Criminal Records  Page 5 of 6 

letter of employment, will have clearly stated in such contract or letter of employment that his/her 
employment or approval to work within the district is entirely conditioned upon the results of a CHRC 
and Background Investigation being satisfactory to the district.  

 
F. Final Offer of Employment 

No Applicant shall be extended a final offer of employment or be allowed to serve/provide services in 
the district if such person has charges pending or has been convicted of any Section V Offense; or 
where such person has been convicted of the same conduct in another state, territory, or possession 
of the United States; or where such person has been convicted of the same conduct in a foreign 
country.  
 
An Applicant may only be extended a final offer of employment or final approval to work/serve within 
the district’s schools upon the satisfactory completion and results of CHRC and Background 
Investigation,  

 
G. Administrative Protocols/Procedures  

The Superintendent is authorized to establish written protocols for background investigations, and 
such protocols may vary depending on the nature of the position(s) (e.g., verification of academic 
records and achievements for certified professionals, credit checks for personnel with fiscal 
responsibilities). The written protocols may include additional specific disqualifying misdemeanor or 
felony convictions or charges (e.g., prostitution, theft, etc.) in addition to the Section V Offenses.  

 
H. Contractor and Vendor Provisions  

The Superintendent shall take such steps as are necessary to assure third party agreements which 
involve covered personnel to include a provision for such personnel to complete CHRCs and 
Background Investigations as required under this policy, as well as training and information relative to 
child sexual abuse prevention as required under RSA 189:13-a, XII and policy GBCE.  

 
I. Training of Superintendent/Designee  

The Superintendent or any Designee shall complete such training relative to the reading and 
interpretation of criminal records as required by NHED.  

 
J. Reports of Criminal Offenses Post-Hire or Commencement of Service 

When the District receives a notification of a Covered Person being charged with or convicted of a 
Section V Offense or other crime which is evidence of the individual's unsuitability to continue in their 
role, the Superintendent shall take immediate appropriate action to remove the individual from 
contact with students. Employees shall be placed on paid administrative leave, if not subject to 
immediate discharge. The Superintendent will then take appropriate employment or other action, 
consistent with law and any applicable employment contract or collective bargaining agreement to 
address the individual's ongoing relationship with the district. If the Covered Person 
charged/convicted of a Section V Offense is a credential holder as defined in the New Hampshire 
Code of Conduct for Educators, the Superintendent shall report to the New Hampshire Department of 
Education pursuant to section 510.05 of the Code and Board policy GBEAB – Mandatory Code of 
Conduct Reporting.  

  
    
  



GBCD Background and Criminal Records  Page 6 of 6 

 
 
Legal References 

RSA 189:13-a, School Employee and Designated School Volunteer Criminal History Records Check  
RSA 189:13-b, School Bus Driver and Transportation Monitor Criminal History Records Check  
Code of Conduct for New Hampshire Educators  

 
 
 
 
Adopted: April 6, 2020 
First Reading: November 7, 2022 
Second Reading: 
Updated: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

POLICY CODE: GBCD Background 

Investigation and Criminal Records  

 

RELATED POLICIES: IJOC 

FIRST ADOPTION:  04/06/2020  

  

LATEST REVISION:  04/06/2020 

Page 1 of 1 

 

Category: Priority/Required by Law 

 

Background Investigation 

The Superintendent, or his/her designee, will conduct a thorough investigation into the past 

employment history, criminal history records, and other appropriate background of any applicant 
as defined in this policy.  This investigation shall be completed prior to making a final offer of 

employment, approving the contract with an individual contracting directly with the District, or 

approving the assignment of an employee of a contractor, a student teacher, or designated 

volunteer to work within the District. 

The Superintendent shall develop a background investigation protocol for use in completing a 

background investigation and shall keep a written record of all background investigations which 
have been done.  For the purposes of this policy the term "applicant" shall include an applicant 

for employment by the District, an individual with whom the District may contract to provide 

services directly to students, any person identified by a contractor with the District whom the 
contractor proposes to assign to provide services directly to students, student teachers who are 

proposed to be placed in a District school, and designated volunteers.  All applicants will be 
subject to a criminal records history check meeting the minimum requirements of law, however, 

the Superintendent's protocol may specify additional background check steps for specific groups 

of employees, such as verifying the educational achievements and employment history of an 
applicant for a teaching position.  The Superintendent's protocol shall include a list of felonies 

and misdemeanors, in addition to those specified in RSA 189:13-a, V, convictions of which shall 
be disqualifying.  The protocol shall require that an analysis be conducted of any pending 

charges or convictions for crimes not on the statutory list of disqualifying offenses to determine 

whether the applicant should be disqualified.  The protocol shall take into consideration the time 
which has passed since the conviction, the facts and circumstances of the charge or conviction, 

evidence of successful rehabilitation and an extended period of lawful behavior.  For charges 
pending disposition for offenses not on the statutory list of disqualifying offenses, which the 

applicant discloses or which come to light during the background check, the presumption of 

innocence shall apply, however, the Superintendent shall consider all reliable information in 
assessing the applicant's suitability.  The Superintendent shall assess whether, in light of the 

totality of the circumstances, the pending charges or convictions raise reasonable cause to doubt 

the applicant's suitability for the position.   

As part of the application process, each applicant shall be asked whether he/she has ever been 

convicted of any crime and whether there are any criminal charges pending against him/her at 

the time of application.  The applicant will also be directed to report any criminal charges 
brought against him or her after the application is submitted and until either hired or notified that 

he or she will not be hired.  The falsification or omission of any information on a job 
application, during the pendency of the application, or in a job interview, including, but not 

limited to, information concerning criminal convictions or pending criminal charges, shall be 



   

grounds for disqualification from consideration for employment or immediate discharge from 

employment. 

Any applicant for whom the Board requires a criminal history records check or their employer in 

the case of an employee of a contractor shall pay all fees and costs associated with the 
fingerprinting process and/or the submission or processing of the requests for the criminal 

history records check, unless otherwise determined by the Board. 

Criminal History Records Check 

Each applicant must submit to a background check and a criminal history records check with the 

State of New Hampshire, including FBI national records.  Refusal to provide the required 
criminal history records release form and any other required releases to authorize a background 

check will result in immediate disqualification and no further consideration for the position.  

Volunteers 

Designated Volunteers are subject to a background investigation/criminal records check and the 
provisions of this policy.  "Designated Volunteers" are defined and so designated pursuant to 

Policy IJOC.  Volunteers not categorized as "Designated Volunteers" per Policy IJOC will not 

be subject to a background investigation or criminal records check. 

Conditional Offer of Employment 

Persons who have been selected for employment may be given a conditional offer of 
employment, with the final offer subject to the successful completion of the background check, 

the State and FBI criminal history records check, and a determination that there are no 

disqualifying pending charges or convictions. 

No applicant selected for employment shall be extended a conditional offer of employment until 

the Superintendent, or his/her designee, has initiated the formal State and FBI criminal history 

records check process and a background investigation. 

Any person who is offered conditional employment, by way of individual contract or other type 
of letter of employment, will have clearly stated in such contract or letter of employment that 

his/her employment or approval to work within the District as a contractor or employee of a 
contractor is entirely conditioned upon the results of a criminal history records check and 

background check being satisfactory to the District. 

Final Offer of Employment 

A person who has been extended a conditional offer of employment or conditional approval to 

work within the District as a contractor or employee of a contractor may be extended a final offer 
of employment or final approval upon the completion of a criminal history records check and a 

background check which is satisfactory to the Board. 

No person with a conditional offer of employment shall be extended a final offer of employment 
if such person has charges pending or has been convicted of any crime listed in RSA 189:13-a, 

V; or where such person has been convicted of the same conduct in another state, territory, or 

possession of the United States; or where such person has been convicted of the same conduct in 

a foreign country. 

In addition to the felonies listed as disqualifying in pertinent and applicable law, a person may be 



   

denied a final offer of employment if he/she has charges pending or has been convicted of any 
crime, either a misdemeanor or felony, provided the basis for disqualifying the candidate is job 

related for the position in question and is consistent with business necessity.  Such 
determination will be made by the Superintendent in accordance with the established protocol 

and on a case-by-case basis.  If the Superintendent chooses to nominate an applicant who has a 

history of conviction of a crime or with pending charges for a position that must be approved by 

the School Board, the School Board shall be informed of that history in non-public session.   

The Superintendent, or designee, will transmit each applicant's Criminal Record Release 

Authorization Form and, where inked cards are used, the applicant's fingerprint cards to the State 
Police.  The State Police will then conduct the criminal history records check and will provide 

the Superintendent with the applicant's criminal history record or confirmation that the individual 

does not have a record of being charged with or convicted of a crime.  In accordance with RSA 
189:13-a, III, only the Superintendent will review the criminal history record received from the 

State Police and shall destroy that document as required by law.   

When the District receives a notification of an employee, contractor, contractor's employee, or 
volunteer being charged with or convicted of a disqualifying offense under RSA 189:13-a, the 

Superintendent's protocol, or other crime which is evidence of the individual's unsuitability to 

continue in their role, the Superintendent shall take immediate appropriate action to remove the 
individual from contact with students.  Employees shall be placed on paid administrative leave, 

if not subject to and immediately discharged.  The Superintendent will then take appropriate 
employment or other action, consistent with law and any applicable employment agreement or 

contract to address the individual's ongoing relationship with the District.   

Additionally, a person may be denied a final offer of employment if the Superintendent becomes 

aware of other conduct which he/she determines would render the person unsuitable to perform 
the responsibilities of the position involved. Such determinations shall be made on a 

case-by-case basis. 

Additional Criminal Records Checks 

The Board may require a criminal history records check of any employee, an individual with 
whom the District has contracted to provide services directly to students, any person identified 

by a contractor with the District who has been assigned to provide services directly to students, 

student teachers who are placed in a District school, and designated volunteers at any time. 

 

 

 

 

 

Legal References: 

RSA 189:13-a, School Employee and Volunteer Background Investigations 

 
 



IHCD Advanced Course Work/Advanced Placement Courses & STEM Dual & Concurrent Enrollment Program       Page 1 of 2  

HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT POLICY 
 
 

IHCD Advanced Course Work/Advanced Placement Courses & Stem Dual & Concurrent 

Enrollment Program 
Updated: Current policy with NHSBA revisions, School Board Second Reading – November 21, 2022 
Related Policies: IKF 
Category: Priority/Required by Law 
 
A.   Advanced Course Work/Advanced Placement Courses 

Any student who is capable of, and wishes to do advanced course work or take advanced placement 
classes while in high school should be permitted to do so.  School district administrators and school 
counselors will aid students who wish to enroll in such courses.  If advanced course work or 
advanced placement courses are not available within the School District, administrators or school 
counselors are instructed to assist students in identifying alternative means of taking such classes. 
This may include taking courses through the Dual and Concurrent Enrollment Program, at a different 
public school, a private school, through distance education courses, or other suitable means. 
  
Any student whose eligibility for taking advanced course work is recommended by his/her counselor 
may enroll in a course.  Credit may be given, provided the course comports with applicable District 
policies and state standards.  The District will not be responsible for any tuition, fees, or other 
associated costs incurred by the student for enrollment in such courses. 
 

 
B. STEM Dual and Concurrent Enrollment Program 

High School and Career Technical Education Center qualified students in grades 10 through 12 may 
participate in the Dual and Concurrent Enrollment Program, through which a student may earn both 
High School and College credits by enrolling in STEM (science technology, engineering, and 
mathematics) and STEM-related courses designated by the Community College System of New 
Hampshire (”CCSNH”). 
 
The Superintendent shall be responsible for coordinating any agreements with CCSNH, and other 
measures necessary to implement and maintain the Dual and Concurrent Enrollment Program within 
the District.  The Superintendent shall also designate a point of contact for the program who can 
provide for student counseling, support services, course scheduling, managing course forms and 
student registration, program evaluation, course transferability, and assisting with online courses.  
The Superintendent or his/her designee shall establish regulations for the program which, among 
other things, will: 

 
1. Require compliance with measurable educational standards and criteria approved by the CCSNH 

2. Require that courses meet the same standard of quality and rigor as courses offered on campus 
by CCSNH 

3. Require that program and courses comply with the standards for accreditation and program 
development established by the National Alliance for Concurrent Enrollment Partnerships 

4. Establish criteria for student eligibility to participate in the program 

5. Establish standards for course content 



IHCD Advanced Course Work/Advanced Placement Courses & STEM Dual & Concurrent Enrollment Program       Page 2 of 2  

6. Establish standards for faculty approval 

7. Establish program coordination and communication requirements 

8. Address tuition, fees, textbooks and materials, course grading policy, data collection, 
maintenance, and security, revenue and expenditure reporting, and a process for renewal of the 
agreement 

9. Require annual notification to high school students and their parents of Dual and Concurrent 
Enrollment opportunities 

10. Set out how any Dual and Concurrent Enrollment courses correlate with a Career Readiness 
Credential under Board policy {**} IKFG 

      
  
 
Legal References  

RSA 188-E:25 through RSA 188-E:26-28 
Ed 306.141(a)(6), Advanced Course Work 
  

Adopted: May 21, 2018 
First Reading: November 7, 2022 
Second Reading: 
Adopted or Reviewed: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



IJOC Volunteers Page 1 of 3 

HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT POLICY 
 
 

IJOC Volunteers 

Updated: NHSBA version for School Board Second Reading – November 21, 2022, replaces current policy 
Related Policies: ABA, GBCD, GBCE, and IJOA, see also Form IJOC-R 
Category: Recommended 
 
 
A. General Policy 

The School Board supports and encourages the use of parent and community member volunteers in 
our schools to assist school and District staff in meeting the needs of students and serving the school 
community at large.  

 
B. Definitions  

1. Volunteer. Under the Fair Labor Standards Act (“FLSA”), “volunteers” are persons who perform 
service (1) without promise, expectation or receipt of compensation for the services rendered 
(reimbursements, and modest stipends excepted); (2) have offered their services freely and 
without pressure or coercion from any employer, and (3) are not otherwise employed by the 
district to perform the same type of services for which the individual intends to volunteer.  
This expansive definition includes such services whether for classroom or other student 
programs or activities, or for services such as committee work, chaperones, trades work, etc.  
 

2. “Designated Volunteer” as used in this policy shall have the same definition as in Board policy 
GBCD - Background Investigation and Criminal Records Check. Before a person may volunteer in 
a position or perform a function falling within the definition of Designated Volunteer, such 
person must undergo a background investigation and criminal history Records check as described 
in policy GBCD. Additionally, as required by RSA 189:13-a, XII and policy GBCE, all Designated 
Volunteers must receive training and information relative to child abuse prevention.  
 

C. Coaches 
All coaches, including assistant coaches, whether receiving a stipend or not, are Designated 
Volunteers as defined in paragraph B above. Additionally, head coaches of team or individual sports 
must be in compliance with all regulations and certification requirements for that sport as set by 
NHIAA or the applicable organization within which the athletes/members compete or participate. 
Assistant coaches must meet the same requirements as head coaches or be under the direct 
supervision of the head coach.  

 
D. Volunteer Application, Selection and Assignment  

Persons wishing to volunteer at the district should complete a Volunteer Application form describing 
their skills, interests and availability.  Such forms will be made available at the Principal’s or SAU 
office.  
 
Volunteer selection shall be made based on the qualifications and availability of the volunteer.   
Volunteers shall be provided appropriate training at the building level consistent with their tasks, 
existing District standards and applicable laws and Board policies. This training shall be coordinated 
under the leadership of the principal or other supervising administrator. At a minimum, such training 

https://campussuite-storage.s3.amazonaws.com/prod/1559099/2daf64be-7eca-11ec-a76b-021f64618557/2395376/c04cee76-b030-11ec-9857-0edc3f82e32d/file/IJOC%20Volunteers.pdf


IJOC Volunteers Page 2 of 3 

will include (1) general job responsibilities; (2) information about school facilities, routines, and 
procedures, including safety and evaluation; (3) work schedule and place of work; (4) expected 
relationship to regular staff; and (5) information on non-discrimination and prohibition against 
teaching or advocating discriminatory concepts.  
 
Volunteer assignments shall be made by the building or administrator responsible for that program, 
or the appointing authority in the event of a committee.  
 
Volunteers shall be assigned only to those staff members who have requested volunteer assistance 
through their administrative supervisor (e.g., principal, athletic director, facilities director) [or 
volunteer coordinator], or to administrative or district level committees.  

 
E. Supervision 

Volunteers may not be assigned to perform any services within school buildings or during school 
activities during times that students may reasonably be expected to be in attendance, unless the 
volunteer is either a Designated Volunteer (i.e., has undergone a background investigation and 
Criminal History Records Check, or is under the immediate direction of a staff or administration 
member within the pertinent program).  

 
F. Volunteer Responsibilities and Duties 

Other than committee volunteers, and head coaches/directors, volunteers may only serve in the 
capacity of assistants. Instructional services shall be rendered only under the supervision of certified 
staff.  

 
All volunteers will sign a confidentiality agreement provided by administration and shall refrain from 
discussing the performance or actions of a student except with the student's teacher, counselor, 
Principal, or other school district employee who has a legitimate educational purpose for discussing 
such information.   

 
Volunteers with special talents, hobbies or experiences may share those with students in a suitable 
educational setting scheduled by the staff or administrative member responsible for supervising the 
class, activity, program or project.  

 
Volunteers will refer to their immediate supervisor or other regular staff member for final solution of 
any student problems which arise, whether of an instructional, medical or operational nature.  

 
G. Volunteer Termination 

Volunteers serve at the pleasure of the district. Except as may be provided in an individual volunteer’s 
agreement, services of a volunteer may be terminated, without notice, at any time when 
circumstances in the judgment of the supervising administrator warrant termination.  

 
H. Implementation 

The Superintendent is authorized to develop and administer any regulations or procedures s/he 
deems necessary or appropriate to implement this policy.  

  
 
 
 



IJOC Volunteers Page 3 of 3 

 
 
 
 
 
      
  

Legal References 

29 U.S.C. 201-219, Fair Labor Standards Act  
29 C.F.R.§ 553.101, “Volunteer” defined (state and local governments).  
RSA 189:13-a, School Employee and Volunteer Criminal History Records Check  
RSA 193:40, Prohibition on Teaching Discrimination  
RSA 354-A:32, Prohibition on the Content of Government Programs and Speech  
RSA 508:17, Volunteers; Nonprofit Organizations; Liability Limited.  

  

  

First Reading: December 19, 2016 
Second Reading: January 23, 2017 
Adopted: January 23, 2017 
First Reading: November 7, 2022 
Second Reading:  
Adopted:  
 
 
 

 



HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT  

POLICY NUMBER: IJOC Volunteers 

 

Page 1 of 2  

ADOPTED: 1/23/2017 

  

First Reading: 12/19/2016 

Second Reading: 1/23/17 

 

 

VOLUNTEERS IN SCHOOLS 
 
The District recognizes the valuable contribution made by volunteers. The Superintendent or designee is 
responsible for developing and implementing procedures for the selection and utilization of volunteers. 
 
Volunteers are not assigned roles which require specific professional training or responsibilities that 
would be the same as a paid school district employee. Their role is to serve in the capacity of assistants. 
 
The Hudson School District offers 2 volunteer positions: 

1. A Designated Volunteer 
2. An Event Volunteer 

 
DESIGNATED VOLUNTEERS 
“Designated volunteer” means any volunteer who: 

• comes in contact with pupils on a regular basis 

• works a regular and consistent schedule 

• meets with students on a regular and/or one- on-one basis 

• Any other volunteer so designated by the Superintendent or Superintendent’s designee and/or 
the building administrator. 

 
Designated volunteers will be subject to a background and criminal record check in accordance with RSA 
189:13a. The District will pay for those volunteers needing a criminal record check. 
 
Designated volunteers will: 

1. Fill out a volunteer application describing their skills, interests and availability. Such forms will 
be made available in the Principal’s office. 

2. Sign a confidentiality agreement, and refrain from discussing the performance or actions of a 
student except with the student’s teacher, counselor, principal or other school district personnel 
who has a legitimate educational purpose for discussing such information. 

3. Complete a personnel emergency contact form 
4. Sign acknowledgement and receipt of the Hudson School Districts policies on Social media and 

Title IX sexual harassment. 
5. receive orientation including: 

• information about school facilities, routines and procedures, including safety and 
emergency procedures 

• be assigned a work schedule and place of work 

• given expectations of staff and student relationships 

• be provided training consistent with their tasks 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EVENT VOLUNTEERS: 



HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT  

POLICY NUMBER: IJOC Volunteers 

 

Page 2 of 2  

ADOPTED: 1/23/2017 

  

First Reading: 12/19/2016 

Second Reading: 1/23/17 

 

 

“Event volunteer” means any volunteer who will assist school district personnel with specific events 
being held by the school administration.  

• Event volunteers must be in the presence of and under the supervision of school district 
personnel at all times.  

• Event volunteers will not, at any time have sole responsibility for assisting a student or be left 
alone with a student or group of students.  

• Assignments for event volunteers shall be limited to situations that are supervised by a certified 
staff person.  

 
A volunteer may be asked to terminate his/her services when circumstances in the judgment of the 
administrator necessitate termination. 
 
Volunteer athletic coaches or sport officials shall possess proper certification or validation of 
competence in the rules, procedures, practices and programs of the athletic activity per RSA 
508:17. 
 
Legal references: RSA 189:13-a, School Employee and Volunteer Criminal History Records Check 

 



IK Earning of High School Credit Page 1 of 2 

HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT POLICY 
 
 

IK Earning of High School Credit 
Updated: NHSBA version for School Board Second Reading – November 21, 2022; new policy 
Related Policies: BAAA, IKF, ILBA, ILBAA, and IMDB 
Category: Priority/Required by Law 
 
Demonstration of Mastery 
Students can earn course credit by demonstrating mastery of the required coursework and material. 
Mastery is defined in Board policy ILBAA as “a high level of demonstrated proficiency with regard to a 
competency.” 
 
Student assessment of mastery outside of normal classwork is the responsibility of the building Principal. 
 
Credit will be awarded upon satisfactory demonstration and mastery of the required course 
competencies. Additionally, credit may also be awarded if a student is able to demonstrate learning 
experience in compliance with the district-specified curriculum and assessment standards.  
  
Transfer Credits from Other Approved Schools 
Students can receive credits toward graduation for courses from another approved school subject to this 
Section.   
 

1. Awarding of Credit for Similar Courses from an Approved School 
The building Principal shall grant credit for any similar courses or programs that have been 
satisfactorily completed at any other approved schools.  For the purposes of this paragraph B, 
when reviewing the issue of whether a course or program is “similar,” the Principal shall consider 
District course descriptions and curricula, course syllabi, District and graduation competencies 
per Board policy ILBAA, and any other relevant information provided by the parent/guardian of 
the transferring student, and/or the approved school at issue.    
 
Approved schools include New Hampshire public schools, charter schools, public academies, 
approved public or private tuition program schools, and all schools in Vermont and Maine that 
are members of an interstate school district with schools in New Hampshire. 
 

2. Denial of Award Credit for Courses from Another School 
The building Principal will provide a timely and written notification of denial to award credit. The 
written denial shall include a justification for denial, including discussion of criteria set out in 
paragraph B.1 and any other factors that support the Principal’s denial.   
 
Upon written request by the parent/guardian, such denial can be submitted for review to the 
Superintendent, who may override or modify the Principal’s denial.  Any further review shall be 
subject to the provisions of Board policy BAAA. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



IK Earning of High School Credit Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
 

  
Legal References   

RSA 193-E:3-f, Approval of Courses and Programs 
N.H. Dept. of Education Administrative Rule – Ed 306.02(e), Credit 
N.H. Dept. of Education Administrative Rule – Ed 306.04(a)(15), How Credit Can Be Earned 
N.H. Dept. of Education Administrative Rule – Ed 306.04(a)(16), How A Credit Used To Track 
Achievement Of Graduation Competencies 
N.H. Dept. of Education Administrative Rule – Ed 306.27, High School Curriculum, Credits, Graduation 
Requirements, and Cocurricular Program 

 
First Reading: November 7, 2022 
Second Reading: 
Adopted: 



ILBA Assessment of Educational Programs Page 1 of 2 

HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT POLICY 
 
 

ILBA Assessment of Educational Programs 
Updated: NHSBA version for School Board Second Reading – November 21, 2022; new policy 
Related Policies: n/a 
Category: Recommended 
 

The Superintendent will develop and manage an assessment program that provides ongoing evaluation 
of the effectiveness of the curriculum on improving student performance. The program must adhere to 
the processes for selection, use, and interpretation of assessment instruments specified below. This 
program will include both local and statewide assessment tools. The program must be aligned with the 
goals of the School District and be designed to assess each student's progress toward meeting the 
defined curriculum objectives. 
 
Definitions 
For the purposes of assessment of high school course work through the demonstration of student 
mastery of course competencies, the following definitions are established: 

• Course Level Competency: the expected content, concepts, and skills to be mastered in a course  

• Competency Assessment: the process by which a student demonstrates sufficient evidence of 
learning  

• Mastery: a student presenting sufficient evidence of attainment of the required competencies 
 

Selection of Assessment Instruments 
The selection process will include input from the professional staff in its efforts to investigate new 
assessment tools and evaluate existing ones. Assessment instruments selected will provide an authentic 
evaluation of student learning outcomes through multiple formative and summative assessment 
instruments including, but not limited to, teacher observation of project-based learning, including off-
site learning projects; competency-based assessments; and teacher-designed quizzes and tests.  
 
Additional instruments may include written examinations, oral examinations, alternative questions, 
demonstrations, writing exercises, individual projects, group projects, performances, student portfolios, 
and samples of the student's best works. 
 
Administration and Use of Assessment Instruments 
The assessment program will include an approximate schedule for when assessment tools will be 
administered to students. The schedule will be distributed to staff and the Board before the start of each 
school year. Teachers will not be bound by this schedule and may still administer tests, quizzes, and 
other assessment tools as they deem necessary. 
 
Each building principal will provide assurance that test procedures are followed at the school level, 
including the distribution and collection of test materials, test security, use of test results and testing 
dates as well as other pertinent requirements. Readiness assessment shall be administered to all 
children entering first grade. Disabled students must be provided the opportunity to participate in all 
student assessments. Any modifications in administration should be made and documented during the 
Individualized Education Program (IEP) review. 
 
 



ILBA Assessment of Educational Programs Page 2 of 2 

 
 
Assessment Results  
Assessment results will be analyzed and used with other data for the following purposes: 

• Identify individual student strengths and weaknesses in skill development 

• Diagnose strengths and weaknesses of groups 

• Individualize instruction 

• Report progress to parents 

• Select curriculum materials 

• Set the pace of instruction 

• Select methods of instruction 

• Counsel students 

• Help determine revisions needed in the curriculum 
 

Interpretation of Assessment Instruments 
The Superintendent or designee will ensure that data from the student assessment program is compiled, 
analyzed, summarized, and reported to the Board annually. The Superintendent or designee is 
responsible for the scores of individual students, and they shall be made available only to appropriate 
personnel within the school in which the student is enrolled and to parent(s) or legal guardian(s) of each 
student as provided by law. Interpretation of test results shall be made available to parents and 
students.  
 
The Board will provide funding for the student assessment program, including professional development 
for teachers in the use of tools to understand assessment results, to adjust instruction to meet 
personalized needs of students, and to monitor progress. 
 
The Superintendent will provide an ongoing evaluation of the assessment program and will provide 
regular reports to the Board showing the effectiveness of the curriculum on improving student 
performance. 
 
Evaluation of Assessment Instruments 
The Superintendent will evaluate the instructional programs annually in accordance with Board policies 
and state guidelines. He/she shall have the responsibility to report annually to the Board on the progress 
the District is making towards the attainment of its educational goals. 
 
 
 
Legal References 

RSA 193-C, Statewide Education Improvement and Assessment Program 
Ed 306.24, Assessment 

 
First Reading: November 7, 2022 
Second Reading: 
Adopted:  



ILBAA High School Graduation Competencies Page 1 of 2 

HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT POLICY 
 
 

ILBAA High School Graduation Competencies 
Updated: NHSBA version for School Board Second Reading – November 21, 2022; new policy 
Related Policies: n/a 
Category: Priority/Required by Law 
 
For the purposes of assessment of high school course work through the demonstration of student 
mastery of course competencies, the following definitions are established: 
 

1. Competencies means student learning targets that represent key content-specific concepts, 
skills, and knowledge applied within or across content domains. Specific and required types of 
competencies include district competencies and graduation competencies. 

2. District competencies mean specific types of competencies that are common across the district 
and organized in developmental progressions that lead to achievement of graduation 
competencies. 

3. Graduation competencies means specific types of competencies that are common across the 
district and define learning expectations for each student for graduation from high school. 

4. Mastery means a high level of demonstrated proficiency with regard to a competency.  
 

Course credit will be awarded through the demonstration of a student's mastery of the competencies of 
the course. Course credit granted through demonstration of mastery will be counted through traditional 
methods. Grades and credit granted through demonstration of mastery will be included in the student's 
grade point average. Students must be enrolled in the particular course in order to receive course credit.  
 
Students who are involved in an approved extended learning opportunity to satisfy course requirements 
in whole or in part shall demonstrate mastery through a method or methods as approved by the course 
instructor, as specified in Policy IHBH. 
 
Credit may be used to fulfill prerequisites for other courses and/or subject area credit requirements for 
graduation. Credit will not be granted, however, for a course in a subject area lower in course sequence 
than one for which the student has already earned credit.  
 
The Superintendent shall establish rules for implementing this policy in cooperation with the high school 
Principal and shall be responsible for ensuring that all high school courses include appropriate 
competency assessments. Competency Assessments will be selected, conducted, and reviewed in 
conjunction with the provisions of Policy ILBA.  
 
Assessments shall be aligned with clearly defined educational standards that specify what students 
should know and be able to do. The assessment items and tasks shall be valid and appropriate 
representations of the standards students are expected to achieve. Assessment standards, tasks, 
procedures, and uses shall be fair to all students.  
 
 
 
 



ILBAA High School Graduation Competencies Page 2 of 2 

 
 
Legal References 

Ed 306.02(d), Competencies 
Ed 306.02(g), District competencies 
Ed 306.02(j), Graduation competencies 
Ed 306.02(l), Mastery 
Ed 306.04(a)(16), Tracking Achievement of Graduation Competencies 
Ed 306.04(a)(25), (26), Graduation competencies 
Ed 306.141(a)(6), Achievement of District and Graduation Competencies 

 
 
First Reading: November 7, 2022 
Second Reading: 
Adopted:  
 
 
 
 



\ 

 

 

HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

POLICY CODE: ADD/EBB 
Safe Schools 

ADOPTED: 09/09/2019 

 

Page 1 of 2 
 
 
 
 

Category: Recommended See also EB, JICK 
 
 
 

Safe Schools 

 
The Board recognizes that effective learning and teaching takes place in a safe, secure and 
welcoming environment and that safe schools contribute to improved attendance, increased 
student achievement and community support. To that end, the Board directs the 
superintendent to develop a safe schools plan that includes: 

 
1. Procedures that address the supervision and security of school buildings and 
grounds. 

 

2. Procedures that address the safety and supervision of students during school hours 
and school-sponsored activities. 

 

3. Procedures that address persons visiting school buildings and attending 
school-sponsored activities. 

 

4. Training programs for staff and students in crisis prevention and management. 
 

5. Training programs for staff and students in emergency response procedures that 
include practice drills. 

 

6. Training programs for staff and students in how to recognize and respond to 
behavior or other information that may indicate impending violence or other safety 
problems. 

 

7. Training and support for students that aims to relieve the fear, embarrassment and 
peer pressure associated with reporting behavior that may indicate impending violence 
or other safety problems. 

 

8. Procedures for safe, confidential reporting of security and safety concerns at each 
school building. 

 

9. Procedures for regular assessments by school security/safety professionals and law 
enforcement officers to evaluate the security needs of each school building and to 
provide recommendations for improvements if necessary. 



\ 

 

 

10. Procedures for regular assessments by school climate professionals to determine 
whether students feel safe and to provide recommendations for improvements in 
school climate at each district building. 

 

11. Procedures to provide for regular communications between district officials, law 
enforcement officers, fire department officials, city and county officials and local 
medical personnel to discuss crisis prevention and management strategies, including 
involvement by these parties in the development and revision of crisis prevention and 
management plans. 

 

12. Training programs for staff and students in safety precautions and procedures 
related to fire prevention, natural disaster response, accident prevention, public health, 
traffic, bicycle and pedestrian safety, environmental hazards, civil defense, classroom 
and occupational safety, and special hazards associated with athletics and other 
extracurricular activities. 

 

13. Procedures for the reporting of criminal activity to law enforcement. Each building 
principal shall be responsible for the supervision and implementation of the safe school 
program at his or her school. The principal shall submit annually, in the manner and by 
the date specified by the State Board of Education, a written report to the Board of 
Education concerning the learning environment in the school during that school year. 
The report shall contain, at a minimum, the information required by law. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Legal References: 
RSA 193-D, Safe School Zones 
RSA 193-F, Pupil Safety and Violence Prevention 
NH Code of Admin. Rule. Section Ed. 306.04(a)(2), Promoting School Safety 



EBB School Safety Page 1 of 2 

HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT POLICY 
 

EBB School Safety 
Update: NHSBA version for School Board First Reading – November 21, 2022; replaces current 
policy 
Related Policies: EB, EBCA, EBCB, EBCC, ECA, EEAE, EG, KAA, JLCJA, JLIA, KFA, KI 
Category:  Priority/Required by Law   
 
The Board recognizes that effective learning and teaching takes place in a safe, secure, and 
welcoming environment and that safe schools contribute to improved attendance, increased 
student achievement, and community support. The practice of safety shall be considered a 
facet of the instructional programming of the District schools by incorporating concepts of 
safety appropriately geared to students at different grade levels. 

The Superintendent shall be responsible for developing and maintaining a comprehensive 
safety program/plan for the District, taking into account applicable laws, regulations, Board 
policies, and best practices. While the comprehensive safety program need not be a single 
consolidated document, it should include: 

• The Districtwide Crisis Prevention and Response Plan prepared under policy EBCA, 
which, in turn, includes the site-specific Emergency Operations Plan for each school (see 
also RSA 189:64 and policy EBCA) 

• The Sports Injury Emergency Action Plan prepared under policy JLCJA 

• The District Communication Plan EG 

• The School Bus Safety Program established under policy EEAE 

Additionally, to the extent not included in the above specific Board directed plans, the 
Superintendent will address the following areas of emphasis in the comprehensive safety plan: 

1. Procedures that address the supervision and security of school buildings and grounds. 
See also ECA  

2. Procedures that address the safety and supervision of students during school hours 
and school-sponsored activities. See also JLIA  

3. Procedures that address persons visiting school buildings and attending school-
sponsored activities.  See also KI and KFA 

4. Training programs for staff and students in crisis prevention and management.  See 
EBCA 

5. Training programs for staff and students in emergency response procedures that 
include practice drills for fire and all hazard as required by law and Board policy EBCB. 

6. Training programs for staff and students in how to recognize and respond to behavior 
or other information that may indicate impending violence or other safety problems. 
See also EBCC. 

7. Procedures and training to implement employee and work-place safety per Board 
policy EB. 

https://campussuite-storage.s3.amazonaws.com/prod/1559099/2daf64be-7eca-11ec-a76b-021f64618557/2395270/5f4a02b8-b02f-11ec-bfab-0edc3f82e32d/file/EBB%20School%20Safety.pdf
https://campussuite-storage.s3.amazonaws.com/prod/1559099/2daf64be-7eca-11ec-a76b-021f64618557/2395270/5f4a02b8-b02f-11ec-bfab-0edc3f82e32d/file/EBB%20School%20Safety.pdf
https://z2policy.ctspublish.com/policy/


EBB School Safety Page 2 of 2 

8. Training and support for students that aims to relieve the fear, embarrassment, and 
peer pressure associated with reporting behavior that may indicate impending 
violence or other safety problems. 

9. Procedures for safe and confidential reporting of security and safety concerns at each 
school building.  

10. Procedures for regular assessments by school security/safety professionals and law 
enforcement officers to evaluate the security needs of each school building and to 
provide recommendations for improvements if necessary. See also ECA 

11. Procedures for periodic assessments by school climate professionals to determine 
whether students feel safe and to provide recommendations for improvements in 
school climate at each district building. 

12. Procedures for managing the behavior of children, including, proper training and 
protocols relative to restraint and seclusions consistent with RSA 126-U and Board 
policy JKAA 

13. Training programs for staff and students in safety precautions and procedures related 
to fire prevention, natural disaster response, accident prevention, public health, 
traffic, bicycle and pedestrian safety, environmental hazards, civil defense, classroom 
and occupational safety, and special hazards associated with athletics and other 
extracurricular activities. 

14. District and building level procedures to assure timely safe schools reporting to law 
enforcement the N.H. Department. of Education and the School Board as required 
under RSA 193-D:4 

Whenever the Superintendent delegates tasks relating to the above to other District personnel, 
that delegation should be recorded in a manner readily accessible to others in the instance of 
the Superintendent’s absence or departure.   

Each Principal shall be responsible for the supervision and implementation of components of 
the safety programs in his/her school, inclusive of school busses, school grounds (including 
playgrounds), during authorized school activities (such as field trips), within school building(s) 
(including classrooms and laboratories), off school grounds during school sanctioned activities 
(including, but not limited to, work-based learning and internships), and in the use of online 
resources. 

 
Legal References 

RSA 193-D, Safe School Zones 
RSA 193-F, Pupil Safety and Violence Prevention 
RSA 281-A:64, Safety Provisions 
N.H. Dept. of Ed. Rules - Ed. 306.04(a)(2), and 306.04(d), Promoting School Safety 

 
 

Adopted: January 6, 2020 
First Reading:  November 21, 2022 

https://z2policy.ctspublish.com/policy/


   

HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT  

POLICY CODE: EBB School Safety 

 

RELATED POLICIES:  ADD 

FIRST ADOPTION:  01/06/2020 

  

LATEST REVISION:  01/06/2020 

Page 1 of 1 

 

Category: Recommended  See also ADD, EB 

The Board recognizes that effective learning and teaching takes place in a safe, secure and 

welcoming environment and that safe schools contribute to improved attendance, increased 

student achievement and community support. To that end, the Board directs the superintendent to 

develop a safe schools plan consistent with ADD. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Legal References: 

RSA 193-D, Safe School Zones 

RSA 193-F, Pupil Safety and Violence Prevention 

NH Code of Admin. Rule. Section Ed. 306.04(a)(2), Promoting School Safety 

 
 



Hudson School District Policy EHB Data and Records Retention Page 1 of 2 

HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT POLICY 
 
 

EHB Data and Records Retention 
Updated: Current policy with revisions for School Board First Reading  – November 21, , 2022 
Category: Priority/Required by Law 

 
The Superintendent shall develop and maintain (a) a schedule for the minimum retention of various 
district records (“Record Retention Schedule”) as required under RSA 189:29-a, and (2) procedures for 
records retention and/or destruction.  The procedures should ensure that all pertinent records are 
stored safely and are stored for such durations as are required by law.  The Superintendent shall 
develop procedures necessary to protect individual rights and preserve confidential information. 
 
This policy shall apply to all district records, irrespective of the specific medium of the record, i.e., 
paper, electronic, digital, cloud, etc. 
 
A. Record Retention Schedule 

Records of the District shall be retained no less than the time prescribed in District’s Record 
Retention Schedule {**}EHB-R. The Superintendent shall update the Record Retention Schedule 
from time-to-time in accordance with legislative or regulatory changes, directives of the Board, 
as recommended by the New Hampshire School Boards Association, or upon advice of counsel.  
The Superintendent shall inform the Board of any revisions to EHB-R no later than the second 
School Board meeting after the changes were made. 

 
B. Special Holding or Destruction Provisions 

Notwithstanding the District’s Record Retention Schedule 
(a)  Special destruction rules may apply to student special education records and 
(b)  For other records, the normal retention periods may be suspended when the records are 

implicated by either a litigation hold or a request for records under the New Hampshire Right 
to Know law, RSA 91-A. 

 
1. Special Education Records 

a. Upon a student’s graduation from high school, his or her parent(s)/guardian(s) may 
request in writing that the District destroy the student’s special education records, 
including any final individualized education program. 

b. The parent(s)/guardian(s) may, at any time prior to the student’s twenty-sixth birthday, 
request, in writing, that the records be retained until the student’s thirtieth birthday. 

c. Absent any request by a student’s parents to destroy the records prior to the twenty-
sixth birthday, or to retain such records until the student’s thirtieth birthday, the District 
shall destroy a student’s records and final individualized education program within a 
reasonable time after the student’s twenty-sixth birthday, provided that all such records 
be destroyed by the student’s thirtieth birthday. 

d. A permanent record of a student’s name, address, and phone number, his or her grades, 
attendance record, classes attended, grade level completed, and year completed may be 
maintained without time limitations.  34 CFR 300.624. 

e. The District shall provide parents/guardians, or where applicable, the adult student, with 



Hudson School District Policy EHB Data and Records Retention Page 2 of 2 

a written notice of the District’s document destruction policies upon the student’s 
graduation with a regular high school diploma or at the transfer of rights, whichever 
occurs first. 

f. The District shall provide public notice of its document destruction policy at least 
annually. 

 
2. Litigation Hold 

On receipt of notice from legal counsel representing the District in that a litigation hold is 
required, the routine destruction of governmental records, including paper and electronic or 
digital records, which are or may be subject to the litigation hold shall cease. The destruction of 
records subject to a litigation hold shall not resume until the District has received a written 
directive from legal counsel authorizing resumption of the routine destruction of those records in 
accordance with the retention requirements of this policy and the associated procedures. 

 
3. Right-to-Know Request Hold 

On receipt of a Right-to-Know law request to inspect or copy governmental records, the 
Superintendent shall cease any destruction of governmental records which are or may be the 
subject of the request. The records shall be retained regardless of whether they are subject to 
disclosure under RSA Chapter 91-A, the Right-to-Know law. If a request for inspection is denied 
on the grounds that the information is exempt under this chapter, the requested material shall 
be preserved for no less than ninety (90) days and until any lawsuit pursuant to RSA 91-A:7-8 has 
been fully resolved, all appeal periods have expired, and a written directive from legal counsel 
representing the District authorizing destruction of the records has been received. 

 
 
Legal References 

RSA 91-A, Right to Know Law 
RSA 189:29-a, Records Retention and Disposition 
NH Code of Administrative Rules, Section Ed 306.04(a)(4), Records Retention 
NH Code of Administrative Rules, Section Ed 306.04(h), Records Retention 
NH Code of Administrative Rules, Section Ed 1119.01, Confidentiality Requirements 
20 U.S.C. 1232g, Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
 

Appendix EHB-R, Records Retention Schedule 
 
 
Board Policy History 
First Reading:  July 20, 2014 
Second Reading/Adopted:  July 20, 2014 
First Reading:  May 9, 2022 
Second Reading/Adopted:  May 23, 2022 
First Reading: November 21, 2022 



 IFA Instructional Needs of Each Individual Student                                                                                              Page 1 of 1 

 
HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
 

IFA Instructional Needs of Each Individual Student 
Updated: Current policy with NHSBA revisions – School Board First Reading – November 21, 2022 
Related Policies: 
Category: Priority/Require by Law 
 
 
The Board recognizes that each student has unique and distinctive learning styles, and that not all 
students will excel in traditional classroom settings.  To that end, the administration will design 
the district's instruction and curricular program to meet the instructional needs of students with 
different talents, interests, and development. 
 
Administrators and teachers should collaborate to consider and address students' different 
talents, interests and academic development when planning the district's educational programs 
and curriculum.  
 
In order to meet the instructional needs of students with different talents, administrators and 
staff should explore alternative learning programs such as extended learning opportunities, 
alternative learning plans, distance education, vocational/technical education, and others. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Legal References 
Ed 306.04(a)(6), Instructional Needs of Each Individual Students 
Ed 306.04(j), Instructional Needs of Each Individual Student 

 
 
 

 
First Reading: September 24, 2007  
Second Reading: October 1, 2007 
First Reading: November 21, 2022 
 



 

HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT POLICY 
 

IMBC Alternative Credit Options 
Updated: Current version with NHSBA changes -School Board First Reading , November 21, 
2022 
Related Policies: IHBH, IKF, IKFA, and ILBAA 
Category: Priority/Required by Law 
 
 

Credit may be earned through alternative methods outside of regular classroom-based 
instruction offered by the school district. Awarding of credits to be applied toward high school 
graduation will be determined by the high school principal or other administrator and will be 
granted only if the request fulfills the following: 
The request is submitted with a plan to achieve competency that meets or exceeds the rigorous 
academic standards required by the school for students enrolled in a credit course offered by 
the school. 

• The plan includes clear expectations for performance. 

• The plan includes clearly defined methods and expectations for assessment. 

 

Verification of the plan’s merit can be evaluated in a timely fashion and does not cause 
unnecessary burden of the resources of the district. 

 
The School Board encourages increased educational options for hospitalized or homebound 
students, , suspended or expelled students or other atypical students for whom regular 
classrooms are not practical. 
 
Students earning credit via alternative methods will participate in all assessments required by 
the statewide education improvement and assessment program. 
 
The School Board directs the Superintendent to establish regulations and procedures for 
implementing this policy that will include: 
 

• Definitions of allowable alternative learning opportunities 

• Reasonable limits on the number of approved alternative courses that can be administered 

each school year, both schoolwide and per student 

• The number of alternative credits each student may use toward graduation requirements 

• Application and approval process 

• Criteria for determining which requests satisfy a particular subject area requirement 

• Identification of person(s) responsible for approval, supervision, and monitoring progress 

• Requirements that alternative opportunities meet the same rigorous academic outcomes as 
traditional classroom delivery 



 

• Assurance of student safety including physical and technological 

• Assurance of equal access for all students 

• Assurance that approved alternative learning opportunities are consistent with all policies 
of this board 

• The procedure will be made available to the public 

 
It is the policy of the School Board that alternative methods for the awarding of credit may 
include: 
 

• Competency testing in lieu of enrollment under the provisions of Board policy {**} ILBAA 

• Interdisciplinary credit 

• Satisfactory completion of course requirements at: 

o An approved school under the provisions of Board policy {**} IK 

o An approved home education program (see Board policies {**} IK and Board policy {**} 
IHBG, and N.H. Dept. of Education Rule Ed 315) 

• Demonstration of mastery of required coursework and material, pursuant to Board policy 
{**} IK. 

• Distance, online, or virtual learning opportunities under the provisions of Board policy {**} 
IMBA 

• Extended learning opportunities under the provisions of Policy IHBH. 

• College Credit  including credit earned through Dual and/or Concurrent Enrollment under 
Board policy {**} IHCD/LEB 

• Early Graduation under Board policy {**} IKFA 

•  7th and 8th grade coursework meeting the standards of Board policy {**} IMBD    

 

 
If a student demonstrates knowledge and abilities on a placement pre-test developed by the 
school district for a particular course, the student shall not receive credit for the course but 
shall be allowed to take a more advanced level of the subject or an elective.  
 
Funding 
Unless otherwise recommended by the Superintendent and approved by the School Board, 
under ordinary circumstances students or their parents/guardians are responsible for all related 
expenses including tuition, transportation, and textbooks. The district may pay the fee for 
expelled students who are permitted to take courses in alternative settings. If paid by the 
district and the course is not completed, the student must reimburse the district for the 
expenses. 
 
Legal Reference 

RSA 193-A, Home Education 



 

RSA 193-E:3-f, Approval of Courses and Programs 

N.H. Dept. of Education Administrative Rules: 

Ed 306.04(a)(13), Alternative Means of Earning Credit 

Ed 306.14(a)(14), Alternative Means Of Demonstrating Achievement Of Graduation 
Competencies 

Ed 306.21, Alternative Programs 

Ed 306.26(f), Credit for 7th & 8th Grade Course Work 

Ed 306.27(ad), Early Graduation 

Ed 315, Home Education Programs 

 
First Reading: August 6, 2018 
Second Reading: waived 
Adopted: August 6, 2018 
 
First Reading: November 21, 2022 
 



JCA Change of School Assignment Page 1 of 5 

HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT POLICY 
 
 

JCA Change of School or Assignment 
Updated: NHSBA version replaces current version – School Board- First Reading – November 21, 
2022 
Category: Priority/Required by Law 
Related Policies: JFAA, JFAB & JG 
 
The Superintendent is charged with assigning students of the District to schools and classes 
consistent with Board policies and procedures. New Hampshire RSA 193:3 recognizes that there 
are limited instances when the class or school to which a student might be assigned under a 
district's ordinary assignment policies and procedures, might not be in that student's best 
interests, or other factors might exist under which create a manifest educational hardship upon 
the student such that a change (referred to in this policy as "reassignment") in the student's class 
or school assignment is warranted. The Board has adopted this policy consistent with RSA 193:3 
and to provide procedures for parents/guardians to follow when they believe a reassignment is 
appropriate. 
 
A. Best Interest Re-Assignment - Determination by Superintendent 

Consistent with RSA 193:3, I, and subject to the provisions below, the Superintendent is 
authorized to reassign a student residing in the District to another class within the school, [ to 
another public school or public academy within the District], to another public school, public 
academy, or approved private school in another district. 
 
Authorization granted to the Superintendent to make reassignments under this policy applies 
only after application is made by the parent/guardian of the student or with the 
parent/guardian's consent, and upon a finding by the Superintendent that reassignment is in 
the student's best interests, after taking into consideration the student's academic, physical, 
personal, or social needs.  
 
This policy, however, does not limit the Superintendent's discretion to make other in-District 
assignments consistent with applicable Board policies and administrative rules. 

 
1. Procedure 

a. In order to initiate consideration of a reassignment based upon the child's best 
interests, the parent/guardian shall submit to the Superintendent a written request 
stating why and/or how the child's best interests warrant reassignment. In order to 
facilitate a determination, such application may also include any additional information 
described in 4 below. The written request should be mailed or delivered to the SAU 
office or emailed to the Superintendent at the email address provided on the District's 
website. 

b. Upon such request, the Superintendent shall schedule a meeting (the "reassignment 
meeting") with the parent/guardian, to be held within 10 days of receiving the request. 

c. Prior to or at the reassignment meeting, the parent/guardian shall make a specific 
request that the student be re-assigned to another class/grade within the same school, 
[[{if applicable}to another public school, public academy, or approved private school 

https://campussuite-storage.s3.amazonaws.com/prod/1559099/2daf64be-7eca-11ec-a76b-021f64618557/2395415/a8a1c2aa-b031-11ec-aa83-0edc3f82e32d/file/JCA%20-%20Change%20of%20School%20or%20Assignment.pdf


JCA Change of School Assignment Page 2 of 5 

within the district] or to a public school, public academy, or approved private school in 
another district. 

d. At the reassignment meeting, the parent/guardian may present documents, witnesses, 
or other relevant evidence supporting the parent's belief that reassignment is in the 
best interest of the student. 

e. The Superintendent may present such information as he or she deems appropriate. 

f. In determining whether reassignment is in the student's best interest the 
Superintendent shall consider the student's academic, physical, personal, or social 
needs. 

 
2. Finding Reassignment Is or Is Not in Best Interest 

a. Within five school days of the reassignment meeting, the Superintendent shall deliver 
to the parent/guardian a written determination as to whether or not reassignment is in 
the child's best interest. Delivery of the written determination should be done in a 
manner to produce evidence of the delivery (e.g., courier, email, fax). 

b. If the Superintendent finds it is in the best of the interest of the student to change the 
student's school or assignment, the Superintendent shall initiate: 

i. A change of assignment within the student's current assigned school; 

ii. The student's transfer to another public school or public academy within the district 
of residence; or 

iii. The student's transfer to a public school, public academy, or approved private 
school in another district. 

c. If the Superintendent does not find that it is in the best interest of the student to 
change the student's school or assignment, the parent/guardian may request a hearing 
before the School Board to determine if the student is experiencing a manifest 
educational hardship as provided in Section B of this policy. 

 
3. Tuition Determination 

If a student is to be reassigned to another school district or approved school as a result of a 
best interest determination, the Superintendent shall work with the Superintendent or 
administrator of the receiving school district/approved school to establish a tuition rate for 
such student. Pursuant to RSA 193:3, I(g), if the Superintendent has made a finding that it is 
in the best interest of the student to be reassigned, then the School Board shall approve 
the tuition payment consistent with the Board's ordinary manifest approval procedures. 
 
If the student is reassigned to an approved private school as a result of a best interest 
determination, that school may charge tuition to the parent/guardian or may enter into an 
agreement for payment of tuition with the school district in which the student resides. The 
Superintendent shall consult with counsel regarding tuition obligations in such an instance. 
 
The Superintendent shall assure that the reassignment approval is placed on the agenda 
for the next regularly scheduled Board meeting.  

 
4. Transportation 



JCA Change of School Assignment Page 3 of 5 

Transportation for a student reassigned to a school in another district under this Section A 
(best interest) shall be the responsibility of the parent/guardian. 
 

5. Tuition for Students Reassigned by Other Districts Pursuant to RSA 193:3, I 
It is the general policy of the Board that the tuition amount to be charged to another 
district for any student reassigned by that district to a school within this District under the 
best interest standard of 193:3, I, shall be the lesser of the tuition charged for non-
residential students under Board policy {**} JFAB or as computed under the formula set 
out in RSA 193:4. The Superintendent, however, is authorized to reduce the tuition amount 
below those thresholds or for other good cause shown (e.g., reciprocal assignments 
between the two districts). 
 

6. Other In-District Assignments. Nothing in this policy is intended to limit authority otherwise 
extended to the Superintendent to make assignments or reassignments according to the 
policies, regulations, and ordinary practices of the District. 

 
B. Manifest Educational Hardship - Determination by School Board and Appeal to State Board 

If, after following the procedure outlined in Section A of this policy, the Superintendent did not 
find that it was in the best interest of the student to reassign the student as requested by the 
student's parent/guardian, then the parent/guardian may request a hearing before the School 
Board to determine if the student is experiencing a manifest educational hardship. 
 
1. "Manifest Educational Hardship" Defined 

 As provided in RSA 193:3, II (a), "manifest educational hardship" means that a student has 
a documented hardship in his or her current educational placement; and that such 
hardship has a detrimental or negative impact on the student's academic achievement or 
growth, physical safety, or social and emotional well-being. Such hardship must be so 
severe, pervasive, or persistent that it interferes with or limits the ability of the student to 
receive an education. 

2. Procedure for Determination of Manifest Educational Hardship 

a. Within thirty (30) days after receipt of the Superintendent's written determination 
described that reassignment is not in a student's best interest as described in 
paragraph {##}A.2.C, above, the parent/guardian requesting a manifest educational 
hardship hearing shall submit a written application to the Superintendent detailing the 
specific reasons why they believe that the current assignment constitutes a manifest 
educational hardship.  

b. The Superintendent shall duly notify the school board that the parent/guardian has 
requested a manifest educational hardship hearing, upon which the school board shall 
schedule a hearing to be held no more than 15 days 3 after the request has been 
received by the Superintendent. The Board shall provide at least two full days notice of 
the hearing. The Board will conduct the hearing in non-public session, unless the 
parent/guardian requests the hearing be held in public session, subject to RSA 91-A:3, 
II(c). 

c. Prior to or at such hearing, the parent/guardian shall provide to the Superintendent a 
specific request in writing that the student [{if applicable} attend another public school, 
public academy, or approved private school in the District, or] attend a public school, 



JCA Change of School Assignment Page 4 of 5 

public academy, or approved private school in another school district. The 
Superintendent shall provide such request to the School Board at the hearing. Although 
not required, the parent/guardian may include this request as part of the original 
hearing request.  

d. At such hearing, the parent/guardian may present documents, witnesses, or other 
relevant evidence supporting their belief that the student is experiencing a manifest 
educational hardship. The Superintendent may present such information as he or she 
may deem appropriate to assist the School Board in reaching its decision. The parties 
(or their appointed designee) shall have the right to examine all evidence and 
witnesses. The formal rules of evidence shall not apply. The Superintendent will assure 
the means for the Board to establish an adequate record of the hearing. 

e. The parent/guardian shall have the burden of establishing the presence of a manifest 
educational hardship by clear and convincing evidence, which means that the evidence 
is highly and substantially more likely to be true than untrue, and the Board must be 
convinced that the contention is highly probable. 4 

f. The Board will render its decision in writing within seven (7) days after the hearing and 
will forward its written decision to the parent/guardian via means producing proof of 
delivery (e.g., courier, email, etc.). The decision will conform to the requirements of NH 
Dept. of Education Rule Ed 320(c)-(e). 

 
3. Finding of Manifest Educational Hardship 

If the School Board finds that the student has a manifest educational hardship, the School 
Board shall grant the parent's or guardian's request to reassign the student [{if applicable} 
another public school, public academy, or approved private school in the District, or] to a 
public school, public academy, or approved private school in another district. 

4. Finding that Manifest Educational Hardship Was Not Established - Appeal to the New 
Hampshire State Board of Education 
If the School Board finds that the parent/guardian has not met their burden of proof, the 
parent/guardian may appeal the local Board decision to the New Hampshire State Board of 
Education ("SBOE"), within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Board's written decision in 
accordance with NH Dept. of Ed. Rule Ed 204.01(g). If a parent/guardian believes that 
denial of a re-assignment under this policy upon the child's disability, the parent/guardian 
may appeal to the SBOE or file a complaint with the N.H. Human Rights Commission under 
RSA 354-A:28.  

5. Tuition for Students Reassigned Upon Finding of Manifest Educational Hardship 
If, after a finding of a manifest educational hardship - by either the School Board or the 
State Board - a student of the District is assigned to attend school in another district, or a 
student from another district is assigned to a school in this District, the district in which the 
student resides shall pay tuition to the district to which the child is reassigned. 
 
Such tuition shall be computed according to RSA 193:4. The school board of the district in 
which the student resides shall approve the tuition payment consistent with its ordinary 
manifest approval process. 

6. Transportation 
Transportation for a student reassigned to schools in another district under this section B 



JCA Change of School Assignment Page 5 of 5 

(manifest educational hardship) shall be the responsibility of the District unless otherwise 
ordered by the SBOE. 

 
C. Admission Requirements 

Students reassigned under this Policy shall meet the admission requirements of the school 
to which the student is to be reassigned. 

 

D. Statutory Reassignment Limit 
The total reassignments or transfer made under this policy in any one school year will not 
exceed one (1) percent of the average daily membership in residence of a school district, or 
five (5) percent of the average daily membership in residence of any single school, 
whichever is greater, unless the School Board votes to exceed this limit. 

 

E. Count of Reassigned Pupils, Tuition Payment and Rate, and Transportation 
Pupils reassigned under this policy will be counted in the average daily membership in 
residence of a given pupil's resident school district. Said pupil's resident district will 
forward any tuition payment due to the District to which the pupil was assigned. 

 

F. Notice to the Department of Education 
The Superintendent of the pupil's resident SAU will notify the Department of Education 
within thirty (30) days of any reassignment made under this policy. 

 

G. Special Education Placements. A placement made relative to a student's special education 
needs and services shall not be deemed a change of school assignment for purposes of this 
section.  

 
 
 
 
Legal References 

Ed RSA 193:3, III, Change of School Assignment 
RSA 193:14-a, Change of School Assignment; Duties of State Board of Education 
N.H. Dept. of Education Administrative Rule Ed. 320 [Pending revision] 

 
 
 
District Policy History 
Adopted: July 20, 2020 
First Reading: November 21, 2022 
Second Reading 
Adopted or Reviewed 
 
 
 

 



   

HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT  

POLICY CODE: JCA Change of School or 

Assignment 

 

RELATED POLICIES: JEC & JFAB 

FIRST ADOPTION: 07/20/2020 

  

LATEST REVISION:  

 

 

Category:  Priority/Required by Law    

 

In circumstances where the best interests of a student warrant a change of school or assignment, 

the Superintendent is authorized to reassign a student from the public school to which he/she is 

currently assigned to another public school, or to approve a request from another Superintendent 

to accept a transfer of a student from a school district that is not part of the SAU, under the 

following conditions and procedures. 

A.  Manifest Educational Hardship Change of Assignment Distinguished. 

When a parent/guardian believes that an initial assignment has been made which will result 

in a manifest educational hardship to the student, the parent/guardian may seek a change of 

assignment in accordance with provisions of RSA 193:3, I, as the same may be amended or 

replaced from time-to-time, and Board Policy JEC - Manifest Educational Hardship. 

B.  Conditions and Procedures for Reassignment Based upon Best Interests. 

1.  Either the parent/legal guardian or the Superintendent of a different SAU may make a 

written request to the Superintendent for a change of school assignment.  In the request, the 

parent/guardian should state why the best interests of the student warrant a reassignment. 

2.  The Superintendent will fully consider this written request, will meet with the parent/ 

guardian, if necessary, and will make a determination concerning the reassignment request. 

3.  The Superintendent's decision will be based on the best interests of the student, as 

determined by the Superintendent. The Superintendent may develop administrative 

regulations concerning the factors that will be considered in making such a determination. 

4.  If the Superintendent determines that the best interests of the student warrant a 

reassignment, he/she will present the matter to the school board.  The board must vote to 

approve the re-assignment before the reassignment can occur.  Upon school board approval, 

the Superintendent may reassign the student to: (a) another school within the same school 

district; (b) another school district within the same SAU; or (c) a school district in another 

SAU, subject to the student meeting the admission requirements of such school, and subject 

to the agreement of the Superintendent of the receiving SAU and approval of the school 

boards of both the sending and receiving school districts. 

5.  The Superintendent will issue a written decision to the parent/guardian.  

6.  The total reassignments or transfer made under this policy in any one school year will not 

exceed one (1) percent of the average daily membership in residence of a school district, or 

five (5) percent of the average daily membership in residence of any single school, 

whichever is greater, unless the school board votes to exceed this limit. 



   

7.  Reassignments made under this policy that exceed the percentages provided in Paragraph 

#6 must have the prior written approval of the School Board. 

 

C.  Count of Reassigned Students, Tuition Payment and Rate, and Transportation. 

Students reassigned under this policy will be counted in the average daily membership in 

residence of a given student's resident school district.  Said student's resident district will 

forward any tuition payment due to the District to which the student was assigned. 

The Superintendents involved in the reassignment of a student will jointly establish a tuition 

rate for each such student.  Some or all of the tuition may be waived by the Superintendent 

of the receiving district for good cause shown or pursuant to any applicable policies of the 

receiving district, presuming said action is not contrary to law. 

The cost of transportation for any student reassigned under this policy will be the sole 

responsibility of the parent/guardian. 

D.  Notice to the Department of Education. 

The Superintendent of the student's resident SAU will notify the Department of Education 

within thirty (30) days of any reassignment made under this policy. 

E.  Special Education Placements. 

A placement made relative to a student's special education needs and services shall not be 

deemed a change of school assignment for purposes of this section. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Legal References: 

•  RSA 193:3, III, Change of School Assignment 

•  RSA 193:14-a, Change of School Assignment; Duties of State Board of Education 

Legal References Disclaimer: These references are not intended to be considered part of 

this policy, nor should they be taken as a comprehensive statement of the legal basis for 

the Board to enact this policy, nor as a complete recitation of related legal authority. 

Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject 

matter of the policy. 



HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT 

POLICY NUMBER: JEC Manifest 

Educational Hardship 

Page 1 of 2 

ADOPTED: 11/7/2005 

First Reading: 10/3/2005 

Second Reading: 11/7/2005 

MANIFEST EDUCATIONAL HARDSHIP 
formerly 3.4(3) 

The Hudson School District recognizes that parent(s) or guardian may request a change of school 
assignment for their child due to a manifest educational hardship in accordance with the 
provisions of RSA 193:3 and ED. 320.01.  If the parent(s) or guardian believes that the attendance 
of their child at the assigned school will result in a manifest educational hardship, they may 
petition the Hudson School Board for a change of school assignment to attend another public 
school in the same district or a public school in another district. 

I. Parent(s) or guardian must submit a written request for a change of school assignment
to the Superintendent of Schools.

A. The parent(s) or guardian must cite what they believe is the detrimental or
negative effect on the pupil which will result if he/she continues to attend the
school to which he/she is assigned.

B. The Board will determine whether a manifest educational hardship exists.

II. The parent(s) or guardian is entitled to a hearing before the Board with regard to the
issue of whether a manifest educational hardship exists.  Within 30 days of receipt of the
written request described above, the Board will schedule a time at a regular Board
meeting to hear the request of the parent(s) or guardian.  Such hearing may be in public
or nonpublic session as determined by the parent(s) or guardian.  This hearing may be
waived at the discretion of the parent(s) or guardian.

III. The parent(s) or guardian has the burden of establishing the detrimental or negative
effect on the pupil which will result if he/she continues to attend the school to which
he/she is assigned.  A manifest educational hardship arises from an obvious or apparent
detrimental or negative effect on a pupil as a result of

a highly unique and substantial educational need not shared by other children 
attending schools in the district. 

IV. If the claim of manifest educational hardship cites a medical condition or a health related
environmental concern:

A. Parent(s) or guardian  will be requested to provide a release for all their child’s
medical records, including permission for school officials to speak with the child’s
physician(s) directly.

WITHDRAWN



HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT 

POLICY NUMBER: JEC Manifest 

Educational Hardship 

Page 2 of 2 

ADOPTED: 11/7/2005 

First Reading: 10/3/2005 

Second Reading: 11/7/2005 

B. The Board reserves the right to have its own medical expert review the records
and speak with the child’s physician(s).

C. The time limits expressed in this policy will be extended by the Board as necessary,
in its discretion, to accommodate delays in obtaining necessary medical
information, upon notice of the extension(s) to the parent(s) or guardian.

V. After a thorough review of the evidence presented and any information the Board
deems relevant and useful, and following a recommendation by the Superintendent of
Schools, if the Board determines that a manifest educational hardship does exist,
appropriate action will be taken including, but not limited to, assignment to another
public school in the district or another available public school in another district.  The
Board reserves the right to make determinations regarding manifest educational
hardships and the resulting action, if any, on a case by case basis.  In making its
determination regarding a reassignment on the basis of manifest educational hardship,
the Board will not consider a private or parochial institution as an appropriate
placement.  The Board will render its decision in writing within fifteen (15) days of the
meeting in which the parent(s) or guardian addressed the Board, and will forward its
written decision to the parent(s) or guardian via U.S. Mail.  If the parent(s) or guardian
waive the hearing, the Board will render its decision within fifteen (15) days of the
meeting at which it considers the petition.

VI. If a parent(s) or guardian is aggrieved by the decision of the School Board, he/she may
appeal to the State Board of Education in accordance with the provisions of ED. 200.

Required by RSA 193:3, II. WITHDRAWN



 

 

 
 

 

               HUDSON SCHOOL BOARD 
18 Library Street        Hudson, New Hampshire 

 

 6:30 pm Regular Meeting 

               Non-Public Session 

 
 

 Draft Minutes – October 26, 2022 
 
In Attendance 

Board Members 

Gary Gasdia, Chairman  

Gretchen Whiting, Vice Chair 

Ethan Beals 

Mike Campbell 

Maureen Dionne 

SAU Staff  

Dan Moulis, Superintendent of Schools   

Rachel Borge, Director Special Services   

Jen Burk, Business Administrator 

 

A. Call to Order [0:00:15] 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 

Chair Gary Gasdia called the meeting to order at 6:30pm. Ethan Beals led the Pledge of 

Allegiance. 

 

B. Public Input [0:00:30] 

There was no public input. 
 

C. New Business [0:00:45] 

1. FY2024 Budget (Discussion) 
a. Special Services 

Rachel Borge, Director of Special Services, presented the Special Services FY24 budget, with a 
0.13% increase over FY23. 
  
Variables impacting this change include:   
● Increased number of students requiring out of district programs with increasing 

specialized needs  



Hudson School Board Hills Memorial Library | Public Session: 6:30pm 

Meeting Minutes - October 26, 2022 Page 2 

● Increased costs associated with students returning from remote learning and the 
cumulative impact of reduced and fully remote early intervention services   

● NH state authorized 5% annual increase in out of district tuition rates   

● Investment in improved instructional practices and associated materials  

● Careful evaluation and selection of budgeted items needed to effect student progress, 
meet state and federal mandates, and maintain fiscal responsibility 

● Currently, because of demand and unavailability in NH, there are eleven placements in 
Massachusetts, where a 14% increase was authorized on out of district private 
placements: an increase of $88,700.88, over the 5% previously calculated 

● Few items have increased by $5,000; most have decreased.  

● Charter school services increased by $10,000 due to related services. 

● Salaries and benefits are down in professional services: life skills, for students up to age 
twenty-two. 

 
Mr. Gasdia mentioned the $580K expendable trust fund for Special Education, noting that 
historically, the budget was underspent by about $500,000. Ms. Burke noted that plans are 
made as if that money isn’t there so it could be used if necessary for emergencies (e.g., 
residential placements). To use the trust, a public hearing would need to be held in order to 
access those funds. Uncontrollable variables include charter schools, foster placements, court 
ordered placements, and transportation. There is a new system whereby episodic treatment is 
available in facilities for emotional crises; discussions concerning costs for educational 
components are taking place in Concord. 
 
Items not included in the budget are improvement of instructional spaces for students with 
disabilities and continued work with SERESC to improve and enhance programs for students 
with disabilities.  
 
There was discussion about using some of the reserve fund given the history of underspent 
end of year funding. Ms. Borge noted that the risk with cutting the budget further is that 
when money runs out, the district still has the obligation to provide services. Ms. Burk noted 
that looking at the budget again might reveal savings in attrition and suggested considering 
the end of year fund balance. Mr. Beals suggested budgeting the life skills lines for $1 then 
transferring into that line item at the end of the year. H.O. Smith and Library Street have the 
most needs. 

 
b. SAU/Districtwide (0:33:13) 

Jen Burk reviewed the SAU/District budget for FY24. This encompasses:  
● SAU staff 

● Districtwide positions such as music, athletics, food service and CTE, ESL staff, school 
counseling and nursing staff, and substitutes 

● School Board and related costs 

● Professional and curriculum development costs 

● Financing costs 



Hudson School Board Hills Memorial Library | Public Session: 6:30pm 

Meeting Minutes - October 26, 2022 Page 3 

 

 
 
Highlights include: 
● Total district wide budget decrease of 9.39% over FY23 

● Decrease in salaries and benefits due to: positions funded through ESSER grant line that 
were moved to building levels in Title 1; ending of the Summer Scholars program; 
decrease in the NHRS rate; vacant and new position benefit assumptions; and the addition 
of an instructional coach moving from a grant into the general fund. 

● Other expenses decreased by $33,075 including software programs moved to the 
technology budget and implementation of a reading program (Collaborative Classroom) 

● $57,104 increase in transportation  

● Decrease of $19,635 in debt/fund transfer interest 

● Increase in legal negotiation 

● Miscellaneous expenses under School Board line 2311 include: police details, mailer for 
the annual report, cost for Greater Hudson Chamber of Commerce; the supply line covers 
flowers for a death in the district, retirement gifts, name plates, etc. There was a question 
of $10,000 to be used for miscellaneous expenses; it was noted that historically, the 
amount has been more than that and has varied. So far, $188.83 had been used.  

● The supplies line under 2320 Superintendent Services will be used towards employee 
hiring, recruiting and retention initiatives. There was discussion about how to generate 
more community engagement. 

● There was discussion about cell phones and usage. 

● It was clarified that school boards cannot give out scholarships from general fund money. 

● The Professional Learning Coordinator helps with the mentorship program 

● The Curriculum Coordinator establishes K-12 curriculum, evaluates the program, supports 
staff with pilot programs, provides professional development, etc. 

● Two instructional coaches are paid for with ESSER funds 

 

c. Warrant Articles Draft 
The warrant articles are under review by Attorney Gordon Graham.  
There are two versions of the Alvirne High School Renovation Warrant:  
● Raise the full amount without a contingency for building aid, or  

● Raise and appropriate the balance and do the project if the building aid was available 

 
 Warrant Article 1    Draft version 1 and 2, Alvirne High School Renovation  
 Warrant Article 2    Operating Budget ($64,066,172; default $63,748,201) 

Warrant Article 3    Collective Bargaining Agreement between the Hudson School Board and        
the Hudson Federation of Teachers  

Warrant Article 4    Collective Bargaining Agreement between the Hudson School Board and 
the Teamsters  



Hudson School Board Hills Memorial Library | Public Session: 6:30pm 

Meeting Minutes - October 26, 2022 Page 4 

Warrant Article 5   Partial Roof Replacement at Library Street Elementary School ($250,000) 
Warrant Article 6   Paving at the SAU Office ($150,000 based on quote which will be made 

available) 
Warrant Article 7   Increasing Funds in the Capital Reserve School Renovation Fund 

($100,000) 
Warrant Article 8   Update to the Fund Balance Retention (allows up to 5% retention of net 

assessment) 
  

It was noted that the partial roof replacement at Library Street Elementary School and the 
SAU paving project are part of the Capital Improvement Plan. There was a request for an 
updated quote for the roof replacement and more detail on the pavement project. 

 
Other possible warrant articles include Hudson Memorial School science lab renovations,  
and phase 2 of the H.O. Smith playground. 

 
Principal Steven Beals wondered if, regarding Article 1, if community members can conduct a 
capital campaign for the community auditorium, is possible under the jurisdiction of the 
School District. He asked if it is possible to access school impact fees for the paving project 
under “roadway” since it is used as a transport for Library School drop off.  
 
There were concerns about supporting the fund balance article considering the financial 
climate and due to the wording (as an emergency). There were concerns regarding the Alvirne 
renovation during this time also, and that the focus should be on staff. 

 
d. Default Budget 

The default budget is based on the removal of one-time expenditures such as the 
Nottingham roof replacement and debt services, and the addition of contractual obligations 
such as CBAs and Special Education costs.  
● The FY23 Adjusted operating budget is $63,169,849 

● Total deductions equal $55,804,696 

● Total additions equal $56,383,048  

● The total 2024 default budget is $63,748,201 

 
Ms. Burk does not suggest cutting the window replacement as it was put out to bid the Board 
approved the project over multiple years.  

 
There was discussion about publicizing the document that Mr. Gasdia sent to the Board 
members on the website or social media.  Details include looking at historical data, fund 
balances, vacancies, budgets, actual salaries and benefits, and which administrators spoke 
about needing more staff.  
Mr. Gasdia noted four goals that included:  
● Reducing the proposed budget below the default budget (telling the community that the 

Board understands the economic climate) 

● Leveraging the upcoming end of year fund balance to pay for large ticket items 



Hudson School Board Hills Memorial Library | Public Session: 6:30pm 

Meeting Minutes - October 26, 2022 Page 5 

● Putting big ticket items on warrant articles and using savings to fund additional positions 
requested by administrators to help drive student success  

● Reducing overall salaries and benefits to better reflect historical actual spending rates 

 
Mr. Gasdia suggested removing from the operating budget and creating warrant articles for:  
● Chairlift replacement ($75,000) 

● Science lab updates ($200,000) 

● Playground phase 2 ($70,000) 

● Marching band uniforms ($44,960 - do a higher warrant article) 

● Food service transfer ($200,000) - as a contingency since the district could not run a large 
debt.  

 
Mr. Gasdia suggested partially funding fifteen new positions:  
● 3 elementary Interventionists  

● 2 HMS social and emotional learning coaches  

● HMS board certified behavior analyst position 

● HMS family interventionist 

● HMS athletic trainer  

● 2 Alvirne academic supports  

● 3 Alvirne elective teachers 

● 2 additional CTE head counts 

 

The positions would be in the budget and the district would have a “salary gap” from support 
staff, etc. that were unstaffed. He then suggested bringing vacant positions in the budget to 
$1, reducing the salaries and benefits total by $501,000 based on historical spending, with a 
3% cushion. He suggested a 1% cushion. All this would provide a budget that is $33,000 over 
the default budget.  

 
Ms. Burk noted that the HMS athletic trainer is a contracted service costing about $20,000 (vs. 
salaries/benefits). Mr. Gasdia favored giving flexibility to administration to meet academic 
needs.  

 
Principal Beals noted that support staff, math, English and science teacher positions are 
needed for academic improvement even if they are vacant. Mr. Gasdia ensured that if the line 
is brought to $1, it is not cutting the position; it is for accounting, and money can be tapped 
into as needed. Principal Beals stated appropriate interpretation is important. Mr. Gasdia 
clarified that he suggests raising the salary cap and allowing more positions.  
 
Principal Beals suggested adding the music replacement purchase ($27,000) since it is similar 
in concept (potentially getting them sooner than later) to the playground project.  
 



Hudson School Board Hills Memorial Library | Public Session: 6:30pm 

Meeting Minutes - October 26, 2022 Page 6 

The teachers’ contract is the biggest budgetary item, and it is necessary to have it pass. Mr. 
Gasdia feels everything needs to show that this is the biggest priority.  
 
There was discussion about “renting to own” musical equipment and about warrantees.  
 
There will be discussion about the position requests and final decisions on November 7th. 

 
The proposal would be publicized with the intent to fund what was possible and not have a 
large fund balance because of unfilled positions. 

 
 
 
Alvirne High School Proposed Cuts: 

 
Ethan Beals made a motion to cut $2500 from Alvirne agenda books line item (bringing the 
total to $5,000). Mike Campbell seconded the motion. Motion passed 5:0. 

 
Ethan Beals made a motion to cut The Week magazine line by $750 for one subscription. 
($750 remaining). Mike Campbell seconded the motion. Motion passed 5:0. 

 
There was discussion about the “Author Visit” line. Ms. Whiting had concerns about the 
amount of interaction via Zoom for a quantity of students outside of advanced placement 
classes. Mr. Beals does not think for an additional $3,000 someone would be physically 
present, and to serve the freshman class, a virtual piece is beneficial due to scheduling with 
other grades.  
Ms. Dionne questioned the value of online visits. Principal Beals noted it depends on the 
author (one person for one day for $8,000, or $4,000 for two visits, etc.)  
He said that the Zoom based field trip for AP was different than an author visit. Speakers cost 
between $3,000 and $5,000 per day. Some visits could be covered with student activity 
money. He feels money should be kept in this account. The original concept was to serve the 
whole freshman class with an author visit. Ms. Whiting felt better in knowing the actual cost 
of speakers. 

 
Ethan Beals made a motion to cut $3,000 from the Author Visit line item bringing the line to 
$5,000. Mike Campbell seconded the motion. Motion passed 5:0. 

 
Ethan Beals made a motion to cut EHall Pass subscription in full ($3,600). Maureen Dionne 
seconded the motion. Motion passed 5:0. 

 
Ethan Beals made a motion to reduce the game officials line by $6,575. Mike Campbell 
seconded the motion. Motion passed 5:0. 

 
Ethan Beals made a motion to reduce fiction/nonfiction to $9,000 (cut $500) and eliminate 
the DVDs line (cut $500). Gretchen Whiting seconded the motion. Motion passed 5:0. 

 



Hudson School Board Hills Memorial Library | Public Session: 6:30pm 

Meeting Minutes - October 26, 2022 Page 7 

Ethan Beals made a motion to cut $800 from the LEDs/AV equipment line. Mike Campbell 
seconded the motion. Motion passed 5:0. 

 
Ethan Beals made a motion to reduce NEASC accreditation visit to/by $2500. Mike Campbell 
seconded the motion. Motion passed 5:0. 

 
There was discussion about AP testing and the 50/50 split. $27,000 represented a 100% 
payment for students taking the test. Ms. Whiting is concerned about cutting cost assistance 
Exams cost about $100 each. Principal Beals suggested that paying for half the cost is 
beneficial.  
● This line item was added in FY17.  

● For FY22, the cost for testing was $16,457 (AP, PSAT and HiSet).  

● The line item for the current year was $38,250.  

● For FY20, the actual cost in the line item was 22,484.70.  

● In FY19, the cost was $30,446.  

● In FY18, it was $32,140.  

● In FY17, it was $29,053.58.  

● The highest number of AP exams was in 2019. Covid impacted numbers.  

● If a student could not afford the test, a request was done through the College Board. 
Otherwise, the school activities line was used. Principal Beals noted that 95 students paid 
to take the test on the Saturday test day. 

 
Gretchen Whiting made a motion to reduce the AP/SAT testing line to $18,000 based on 
historical data and remove $5,000 for PSAT. Mike Campbell seconded the motion. Motion 
passed 5:0. 
 
Mr. Beals spoke about classroom monitoring software, stating there should be some buy-in 
from the student; that it leads to teachers watching what students are doing vs. actively 
teaching; and it is not a perfect solution. Ms. Whiting suggested consulting the IT Director 
regarding this, as it is in his budget. She is in favor of the concept but not in funding something 
if it does not work. Mr. Campbell said there seems to be interest in the middle school. Ms. 
Dionne agrees that more information is necessary. It was noted the program can not be 
accessed by substitutes. Mr. Gasdia thinks the software is good but is concerned that some 
teachers manage classrooms well without it, and some did not. He wants to ensure that the 
software is being used if implemented. Some suggested having Mr. Peterson be present for 
questions, and perhaps a teacher for comment. 
 
Other discussion topics were the volleyball net at the high school follow-up and cutting the 
choral cabinet. 
 
CTE Budget 
 
Administrative position (converting Department Head to Assistant Director)  



Hudson School Board Hills Memorial Library | Public Session: 6:30pm 

Meeting Minutes - October 26, 2022 Page 8 

There was discussion on how this would directly affect students, and concern with losing 
teaching time with this move. More explanation on the value of the conversion was requested.  
 
The Welding Mechanics F/T teacher was not moved forward. Superintendent Moulis felt that 
bringing forward four positions was a lot, and he suggested looking to the next fiscal cycle. 
Ms. Burk noted that classroom space was an issue so creative scheduling would be necessary.  
 
The Board discussed removing the $1100 stipend for being School Board members or reducing 
it to $200/each. 
 
Mike Campbell made a motion to cut line item 46-50 for a total of $5,925. Gretchen Whiting 
seconded the motion.  
 
Mike Campbell amended his motion to assign $1 to lines 46-50 ($5) for a savings of $5,920. 
Gretchen Whiting seconded the motion. Motion passed 5:0. 

 

D. Non-Public Session - RSA 91-A:3 II a and b [3:11:32] 

At 9:42pm, Ethan Beals made a motion to enter into non-public session per RSA 91-A:3 II  
a and b. Mike Campbell seconded the motion. Motion passed 5:0. Roll call vote. 
 
Items discussed were the hiring of an Assistant Principal at HMS and a personnel matter. 

 

E. Leave Non-Public Session and Adjourn [ 3:27:32] 

At 9:58pm, Ms. Whiting made a motion to leave non-public session and adjourn. Mr. Beals 
seconded the motion. Motion passed 5:0. Roll call vote. 

 
 

 
 
Submitted by  
Susan DeFelice 
Non-Public by Dan Moulis 
 

 



�� � ���������������������������	�
�����
��	���������������������������������������������  !"#���� ���$%��&�'����������(!"#���� ��)�&���*�����)� �� ���+,�*�������-���.������/��0#00��1����������'��
�����*�������2345�2367839�:;384<3=�24>?@;>=�A;8?8=B9�C8@>�:;384�D?;3=�E>3F6�G8H>�:3<IJ>FF�G3K4>>=�L8M==>��E4>??�23B=M=9�EM347�MN�O>F>@?<>=�P8386M=�D<8F5�LMQM869�O?K7>=?�R>I4>6>=?3?8S>�
�������TT��L3=�GMKF869�OKI>48=?>=7>=?�MN�O@;MMF6���U8<J>4F5�V4B3=>H9�W6686?3=?�OKI>48=?>=7>=?�MN�O@;MMF6�R3@;>F�EM4B>9�L84>@?M4�OI>@83F�O>4S8@>6���X>=�EK4H9�EK68=>66�W7<8=86?43?M4��������Y�����$%��&�'���������-�����Z
$�!"�11�'�[\�]̂_̀ab�cde\fgeh�igj\jhk�blme�l�bn\jnh�\n�eh\ed�jh\n�hnhoapqrjf�sessjnh�aed�tu[�vwo[̂_�xx�fy�zlpdeeh�{jnhhe�sefnhmem�\ge�bn\jnhy�zn\jnh�alssem�]o|y���R>IM4?6�}>4>�4>S8>}>7��
Y�	��.�����$%��&�'���������[\�~̂w~ab�cde\fgeh�igj\jhk�blme�l�bn\jnh�\n�rel�e�hnhoapqrjf�sessjnh�lhm�qekjh�\ge�dekprld�bee\jhky�zlpdeeh�{jnhhe�sefnhmem�\ge�bn\jnhy�zn\jnh�alssem�]o|y���Y���&&�����������#!##!
 �����%&��)���T��&&�)���'��:;384�2345�236783�@3FF>7�?;>�<>>?8=B�?M�M47>4�3?�����I<��G3K4>>=�L8M==>�F>7�?;>��F>7B>�MN�WFF>B83=@>��W=�3B>=73�?MI8@�}36�377>7�K=7>4��>}�EK68=>66�4>B3478=B�3�I4MIM6>7�L86=>5�?48I���



��������	
������
��� ������������
������
����������	�����������������

������������������ �!������"#�$�$$� �
���$�

%&�'()*+,�-./(0�123243225���������
����6�7��8
!���8��!���9��������	��	�����

���
��������	��:����

!��
�;����������6�����
�
�	��
���
����
�� �!������
���6����;$<�#����	������������
���=�>�
���	��	�������	�����������������?�������������#�
����������;$��@���
��6���6�����
�������
��6�������A�������!�	��
����
��BCD�B��������!����=���
��6����!
	
�������������
������
��������6����	������������!���
��������	
���
�������!�������E!
������!���;<�#����6�����6���
���6�<���
��F��������	�����������������������=����G&�HIIJ�KLMN�O/JP0L�Q-.RISTP0+I.U�12234232V5������������������������

�����

�����>	������$W#��
����:
��
��
��������
��X�!��������
��	
����:
����B������������D��������
���8������B������������B
�������������
�������������
��C�
	
����6��
��Y�
��
:
��������=�B�������B
���

�=�����
������������
��!��@���Z�	������������
���	�
�
�����6���B�������B
���

�#������

�6��6��
�� ���������6�Z��������
��!��=��[&�KLM�\(N+.LNN�1234]34̂5�4&�_*̀+S.L�a+bc�d,cII*�[[_eKP0+I.P*�fI.̀L.0+I.�Q-.RISTP0+I.U�BCD�8���	����D��	�A�
�:���
�
���AAX�����������

������6���
�����6�����
������	������������g���
�
������6����
�� 
����
��B��!����������>	������$<�$h=����
���
�����	��������i�A��������AAX���������
��������i�B
�������!����������!������6����������������:��j�������������:��:
�����6����	���	
��:������������������������������?��
:
���:������i�k������
����	���	��C�
������
���6�6������������
����j��:�������6���
���
����
����!������
���	
����
����
�:��������
�
��9
��#���
	��	���#�������6�	
�������6�������#���	=l���
	������6����������
� ����
����
	���6�����
��
��
����
��AAX�	��!������#�����!���
�����
	����@
����X������E7<�
F#�X!
� ����Eh�
F#���??���������E<�
F#�
��� �	��B
�����EW�
F�i�A��������C�
����m
����Z�:�#�8���!
��n����:���#��
�j����������
���m
	���Z
�������������
�����j�����
�����
�������6�����������������=�C
����
���	��
�������
�j��:�������9
�#���
	��	���#�
��������������6�	
�������
	�������
����
����
	������!��#�����!���
�����
	���������E�
�j����������
���m
����Z�:�Fl����!���E8���!
��n����:���F�
�������?��Em
	���Z
����F=�k�	����
��	
������
!��
�����	
����
���	�����
����	
�����������
���
�������������
�����
	�������?�=��
���Z�	����
	�������?������9������
���������
j����i�8
�����
�:�
��
������
��

���		
��		�����
	������!���i�8���!
��n����:������o�������
����!
�����
������:��������
����
���	
���Em
��
���7��7<#�$�$�F�
��B
������	j:��������X����#� �=�C
��������������;"��	����:���������
����
����
�6����
������
���6
�����	�������������Z��������
��!��@���Z�	����
��
��������
	j��:���������
��X�!�����AAX�	�����������
���BCD�
�!�����������

�6��6��
�� ���������6�Z��������
��!����>��!�
�����
#�k�	����
��	
����#���
����X��j����#��
�j���������#�@�����
�Z�	

���#�m
����Z�:�#�m
	���Z
����#��
��

���		
��		��#�8���!
��n����:���#�Z�������
�	����#�X!
� ���#�D��?
���
������#�@
������X������
��� �	��B
����=�X��������
����:
���
j���:��
��
���	
������
��=��



��������	
������
��� ������������
������
����������	�����������������

������������������ �!������"#�$�$$� �
�����

%&�''(�)*+,-.�/-01-.23*4�56-7*2*8+9�::;��������������
����������������
������<��������
����
������=
��
��>��?@AB�CDEFGBHH�EDIB�D�EJK@JL�KJ�MNDLK�FBNE@OO@JL�KJ�PPQ�OKRIBLKO�KJ�DKKBLI�S@LKBN�TBDIBNOU@F�@L�VDLRDNW�XYXZ[�\KUDL�]BDHO�OB̂JLIBI�KUB�EJK@JL[�?JK@JL�FDOOBI�_̀Y>��a&�%b%%�c4-7*0d�edfg4*7�h8i,3�cigg*,�56-7*2*8+9�;�!���������	��
�����!����
���������������j���
���������
�����	�
��k�����	��l���
��������
��<
���!�����m
����� �!���������
���n�	������o#�$�$�>�p
�������������q�������
��������>��?@AB�CDEFGBHH�EDIB�D�EJK@JL�KJ�DFFNJrB�KUB�QHr@NLB�s@MU�t̂UJJH�KN@F�KJ�KUB�tFB̂@DH�uHWEF@̂O�vJRKU�tREE@K�DK�SDKBNr@HHB�wDHHBW�JL�xJrBEGBN�ZY�DLI�yB̂BEGBN�z{�XYXZ[�?DRNBBL�y@JLLB�OB̂JLIBI�KUB�EJK@JL[�?JK@JL�FDOOBI�_̀Y[��|&�6*2+-f�)8.d1�}.*4���>��	
�������
�����>�~
��������������
�������������
����
���j���
��;�!���������	����
���������������n������<������!����
��;�����$�$�����
�>��p
�������

������

����������	��$�o">�;�������
�����������������q������
!������:�����
>��"��j������j���
�	�����������>���NBK̂UBL�SU@K@LM�EDIB�D�EJK@JL�KJ�DFFNJrB�KUB�QHr@NLB�ERO@̂�IBFDNKEBLK�y@OLBW�SJNHI�KN@F�@L�QFN@H�XYXZ�DO�FNBOBLKBI[�?@AB�CDEFGBHH�OB̂JLIBI�KUB�EJK@JL[�?JK@JL�FDOOBI�_̀Y[�� �&�(d�*.+-��*�3�c7388d�)*+,-.���,.0��i..*7id0.��8g*+0,*8+2�\KUDL�]BDHO�EDIB�D�EJK@JL�KJ�DFFNJrB�KUB�QHr@NLB�s@MU�t̂UJJH�S@LKBN�\�KND�CRNN@̂RHDN�xJE@LDK@JLO�DO�FNBOBLKBI[�?DRNBBL�y@JLLB�OB̂JLIBI�KUB�EJK@JL[�?JK@JL�FDOOBI�_̀Y[����&��.-2-+,0,*8+2�,8�,3-��80.1��b�a%�ba���&��*�3�c7388d�(22-22g-+,��-2id,2�5�+�8.g0,*8+9����!����
��#���������
�#�
�����������
�������������;�!��������
��	
����
����������
�����
��
������
�
>����
���
�����	���������p
����q
��
�����
����	��������
�����
�	��
���
��
��
��	
������������
���
�����	���
������������
���������������
�����
����p
�������
��������q��
�����������

��

!���
���
���!
������	
�	��������
���
����������j����

�����	���������������q���������������
������
��
!
��
����
���
��
��
��	
����j�����
������
���o����p�
	
����q���������
��
�����������
�
�
���	����	
���������
���
����������!���
�����������
���
	�����	����	�������:���
�
�������
��
���j���������
�!������������������������������
����q��
�
	
����	���������
�����
�������#�������
����#���	>��������������q
���
���j�����
��������

!�����	���	
���������������
�
�����j���
��
��	
�����	
����������p
����q
�����	�������
�����	���
���
��������q�����	
�������p�
	
����q
����
	
���	�
�����

!��������������j�q���������j������
����
������	���
���
��������;p�� ����
���
�������������
���oo���;�
����
�
��



��������	
������
��� ������������
������
����������	�����������������

������������������ �!������"#�$�$$� �
���%�

&�'�(���$�$$��)*��+�,	��������
��%-�����	
�
�./�&��
�
���$�$$��%-��+�������
��)������	
�
�./��
����0
�������
���
���	
�	
����
	
��!������12�3456�47�56898�:47�12�;<=�42>�?@AB51C4512D�568�82C19E23825F453E7G6898H�IE9�5617����������
��#�����	�
����J���	

�����������������0
����K�������������	
����J������	��!��������
���J��,��
��
�
�	�
����L���������������
�������JJ����
�
��
	
��
�����
�	�
�����J���������#������M�����
�
�������#�
�����������������
�
����L�N
���
�
����
�������
�
���������
�	
����0

���������������
���������	��#�
������������!��������
���������
��L�O�N
����0
��	��	�����

��*$)�����
�
�������
���
������	������
��������������
�����!��������0�����
�
L����.����
�����0�
#��

�������������	������**-�0
���	������
��������������
�����!��������0L�O�N
�������	��	����
������
����0��	���	��
�����������	����P�
�	������
���

��	�������
�����Q��0����0��.�����������������������
����
����

������������!�����L�O�N
����0
�����	�������
��������������	
�
���
�
��
���
R�������
�����������������R
�����������
��+�L�L#�������J�
���	���
���������/�O�(��S
�
��T$$����
����
����
�
��
�0���
����	��
�������
����
���J�����*U����$�*-�+$)%��,
��/����"�U����$�$$�+*����,
��/L�*)%����������
�������������J����
�����
�L�O�Q�����������+V)L�"U����$�$*/�
������'N�+$L*�U/�O�W�
��
������
������$�$*��-�L$U�+�������%���
�R$�����������/P�$L$-U�(�����������P�"L$U����'N/L�N
�����
����	���
����
�����
�V�U���
��
������
���J���
�%���
��������
L�X�������	��
��
�0����
		�����J������������0
����
��J��������R���������
��������	
����������L�O��������	���
�����
����0
��
���	��
�������
����������J�������������������
�%���
��	������#�$���
��	������#�
��������
��������
�������	
���L���������������������
��$Y$��
�
0
�������
���

��0
�����
�������
����
���
���0�������
�$���
��	��������
�����
��J���������
���
����	
�������
		����
������������������
������L������	�����
�����	�������������J���75A>8257Z�GE75���	���
�������
�	��L�O�S���	
�����J��,������������
������������
������!������
	
����	���������+���

���
���
����������	
����
���/P�!����	
��
���	��
����P����J������
��	���
���
�����+�����������!���/�
���
��
����������J���
�	�
�����J��������������
�
�
���
���J���J����������������!�������[\�]̂_�̀abcdebb�fghijkikjl�h\�̀ a_men�op̂̂pqrastocdû�vwncpd�xyewcbcpdz�(�����J��J�	��	�������
������	�
��������
�
���������J�0
���0
�����������
������{�!�����������#�0��
���
	
�����
�������L��������
�
���
�����
	
���{�������
��
��,��
������

�����������
���������
�������J��
���
���������
��
����	
�������������������
�
P��������������������
�����
����
���J�	����L�N
����J�0
���0�����
���0���
	
�������J�	�������
���������
����������������������������������������!�	��L�N
����0
��
�|�����������
�0�������������0����������
����J�0
��L���L�����
��
��������

���
�������������
!��	��������0��.�0��
������������L�}$�#��������������������
��������L��N
����0
�����	��������
�������
��	��������������������
����������	
���L����~�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������~����~������� �����¡�����������¢��£�������¤��



��������	
������
��� ������������
������
����������	�����������������

������������������ �!������"#�$�$$� �
���%�

&'()*�+,)-.�/)0,�)�/1'21*�'1�3,045,�'(,�51.'�16�'(,�5-)..311/�/)*)7,/,*'�.16'8)3,�-2*,�'1�9:;�<(,3,�8).�*1�.,51*0;���=
����>
����!��>��?��
�����
��������������@�A
���
����
�������
���������B��
??����������#�
���	
�����#����!������?��C��������?���
��������
�����?���
�����#�
��������������������������>
��
���
���	������	��������
���DE�	

����?�#������	���	��	�
��������
������!
�����#��
��F�G���
��������
����
������?����H@��=
��
��������
��!����
�����#�
���?����
	I�>
��������!��>��
�
�	
!�
���

���?�>
��
���
���	����?
��#��
��>��I�	
������������@�D������������>
������
���
����
�	
�����
������?���������
��������#�
���
����������
�	
���
�������!����������@�=
����
��

��	��	�����>��
�?�������?���!
	
�	����B��J�?����
�
�������������?�������?���HK��
��������������
��?�����?�	�����������@�D���
���������>
�������������
���>��������
���	
�����?����
�
���?������
��������
���
������?�������?���!
	
���������������	
�
��
��F�����
���
	
��#��
�
���
	
��#���	@��

��>����������@��L��>
���������

���
��������	������������!���?�����
���������?�����
���
���	��
����
��������>
��
���
���	����������������������������?������>��
������?���
���������@��&'()*�+,)-.�/)0,�)�/1'21*�'1�3,/1M,�631/�'(,�NOPQ�R5(11-�S2.'325'�+407,'�'(,�61--182*7T�RUV�5()23-26'�3,W-)5,/,*'X�YZR�.52,*5,�-)[.X�Y\R�W-)]7314*0�W().,�̂̂X�/)35(2*7�[)*0�4*2613/.X�)*0�'(,�-,).,�M)-4,�613�/4.25�2*.'34/,*'.;�_3,'5(,*�̀(2'2*7�.,51*0,0�'(,�/1'21*;�Z1'21*�QTa�bc1�d�Z2e,�f)/W[,--g��&'()*�+,)-.�/)0,�/1'21*�'1�()M,�62M,�2*02M204)-�8)33)*'�)3'25-,.T�RUV�5()23-26'�3,W-)5,/,*'�b9hij:::gX�YZR�.52,*5,�-)[.�b9P::j:::gX�Y\R�W-)]7314*0�W().,�̂̂�b9k:j:::gX�W435().,�16�aPi�/)35(2*7�[)*0�4*2613/.�b9iljP::gX�)*0�W435().,�14'327('�'(,�.477,.',0�/4.25�2*.'34/,*'.�b9Phjki:g�'1�[,�W)20�14'�16�'(,�,*0�16�],)3�64*0�[)-)*5,g;�m32132']�130,3�814-0�[,�0,',3/2*,0�-)',3;�Z1'21*�W)..,0�iT:;����@����I��������

���
��������	��
���
���

��n"#�����������������
������@����	���
��?�������!�	�������
��	
���������
����������#�������������??����>��
������
��?����������	��@�����
���
���?�>���
��#��
��?�������!�	��?�����
�
�	��>
��
��
�����	
�����?��
��?������
�������
���!����
���
�����	@�G�����
�������
�����>
������?�
�����@�=
���
�����������>
�����op$��?���n�$�#���@�=
��?�������!�	�������
��������?�?�����@�B�������
�����?������!������!������
������C������H�
�������?����
��?��������	���B�������
���������
C
����H��������������	�!����
������@��&'()*�+,)-.�/)0,�)�/1'21*�'1�3,045,�'(,�6110�.,3M25,�'3)*.6,3�2',/�'1�)*0�[]�9a::j:::;�_3,'5(,*�̀(2'2*7�.,51*0,0�'(,�/1'21*;�Z1'21*�)WW31M,0�iT:;��=
����>
�����	�������
�����
����������������
���?������������?�!
	
������������@�=
�������	��	�����

��	���
�����������������	���������?�������
����������������
��?�����@���G=F�F��	�o�
�>���
����I��
������
����q����������!���
�����
�������	

������
��
�����
�������	������������@�=
��	

���������������
���
���
��������
����#�
����
��
�����
�������	���������>�����������	�������
	
���@�G

���������!��
������������
	
��������
�����
������@�G=F�

��



��������	
������
��� ������������
������
����������	�����������������

������������������ �!������"#�$�$$� �
�����

�%�����������
	
������������!�&�������
����
��������''�	�������
		������
�%
������
	
����	�
����(�)
����%�����������������
������
	��'����
�����!�(���(���
����*��	������
�������	

���������
	
(�)
����%�'������������������������	������������#��������������
��������#�%�������	+�����
���%��	�
������

��%����	����������
��
������
��	

��(�,
	����������!
�����
������������������%���������
����(��-��%
���������

���
����
����%�������*��
�
���'������
��!
	
�	���(���(�.
��������������

�#��
���
�
��!
������
�������������#�
���������������
���
���������'�����(�)
��	����
	�����������/����$�$0�
������������
��������*��'
��(�.�������
�����%���������!������	

����'����
��
���������
�
����������
�'����������
�
������(�)
���
��
�����
������
�����	���
��(��1234�567894::�76;4�6�7<=2<>�=<�?4;@A4�=4>�86?68?<B4CC2<>6:�8<C2=2<>C�=<�DE�B<?�6�C6F2>GC�<B�DEHIJKLMN�O?4=AP4>�QP2=2>G�C4A<>;4;�=P4�7<=2<>N�1<=2<>�86CC4;�LRMN��)
����%
�����	�������
������
������������
����������	�������������������STU$#�U0V����
����%��
�����	
�����������
�����(���W=P6>�X46:C�76;4�6�7<=2<>�=<�A@=�DEJMME�B<?�Y1Z�AP<?6:�A692>4=N�16@?44>�[2<>>4�C4A<>;4;�=P4�7<=2<>N�1<=2<>�86CC4;�LRMN�� \]�̂_\̀�abcdef�ghcife�jklmnopifqnlr����������s��������
����/������+�%���������������
��	���������
�����'�,t$�(�)
����%
�����	�������
������
��
�
����	���
���������������

���
����
���'����%
������
��
����������
���
�������(����(��������������

���
��
	
�����������
���������������
�������U0u�
�������������������
���
�� ���
����'�vu(�)
�����''����	�����Tww#"U$(ww(�)
�����	�
�����	
������������%
�����!��������!������Tv��#���������
����������+��'��
����
���
�'�%���%#�	������	���������������
	������(��� ��(���
�����������'
!����
���	
�����	����
	��x�
��'
!�����

!�����
���	�!���������
��������(�� y��
����
��
�z�������������
���������S��	�����������	������'�����
���
�����
�����������
��������
�V��'�T�"U#Uw"#��
����%����������,t$0�����������T��#�{0#{wv(�)
������T�v�#$U��������

���
�������������'
����%
�	
���
�����
���
��(�� W=P6>�X46:C�76;4�6�7<=2<>�B<?�=P4�ZAP<<:�X<6?;�=<�?4A<774>;�=P4�|}~I�ZAP<<:�[2C=?2A=�9@;G4=�G<�=<�=P4�X@;G4=�5<772==44�2>�=P4�67<@>=�<B�D��J�KIJK�LN�1234�567894::�C4A<>;4;�=P4�7<=2<>N�1<=2<>�86CC4;�LRMN�� y
��
���
���	����%������������
���
	+�'�����!��%�
���%���������������������
���������.���������������	�����(����(���
������+��
������
������������	���#���������

���
����������	
������
�������'���
��
�������	��������!�����������������(��,��
�	�
�����



��������	
������
��� ������������
������
����������	�����������������

������������������ �!������"#�$�$$� �
���"�

%�&����
��#�����
�����������������

��
���
	��!�����������'�()*������������+��%�&����
����(�*����������
���
�������+��
����
����������
��
��
���������+�!
	
�	�����,-�./012134�5�61748�93:;1<=�>?142@441/<A�BCDCEDFGH�������������������������!��I�����!��
������	����+���+�������
����*�� %���&��	
������
���J����+�&�
����%�&&K&K��
��
�����L����
���K�	�
���M��������%�&�K��L
�
�N�!���
�	��
�����	�������%�N�OL��
	P�������Q�!�����
�����
���O�����
����������R�	�����O
�	P��%�K�!
�	���O�����I��PSK�!
�	�����
	������O�������T��M&��L�
��
���O��	�������&���������������%�QUVO�W�����������%�QX�&
�������+����
��	
����O�������%�Q��K�K�����������+�&��	
����
�������
����%�Q��KK����
��	
����N�
��
�����O�������	������ M
��������	����I������������
���
	P�+�����	������
����*����Y-�932/ZZ3<;3;�[281/<�BCDFGD\EH�\-�]:<1̂3484�_-�]1<@834�5�̀28/a37�\bc�_d__�ef�ghij�klm�jn�ogpnqg�jrg�knoh�sltmgfju�fgvj�jn�wox�ylmhilzm�flpgx��C-�]1<@834�5�̀28/a37�_dc�_d__�{|}~������~������~������|������������~���~��|���~����������~�����������������~��~�����������~�����������������|��~���{���~~���|���~��~����~����~����|����{��|�������~���������-�93�/784�8/�8�3��/:7;�>,<̂/7Z:81/<A�BCDF�DdCH� *����������������R������� �� ��������������������������������%�¡
�P�
����
�����
��
��K�!�����
����������������
��
���O
��+�L��������!��I�����	������%�M���	���+����	�������I��
���
++�
����
�������������������	�����������	����
��#��
������������	����
���+������������	����
������%����������I��
�+
�������
���
����+�	��������������
	
��¢��������������� �!������ ��%�M
��
��������
��!����
�������
�����£¤¥�¦§¥̈�©ª«¬¤­�®̄ª�°¤«̈¤ª­±�£²¤�³§­§́µ¤�°¤«ª¥§¥¶�·̧ ª̧̄«¹²�º̄�»¹²̄ µ̄�»¼¹¹¤­­�%� �!������)#�W������L
�#�I
��
����+������
����
�������
��I��
�+�	������	����	�����I��P�%�X�������
����I
��
�����
���
����I�������	��
		����
���%�K�������
���

�P����������I
����������
�����
++�+����
��������	
�����
����+�
����	
���#�
�����������������I
����+��	��������
���� �!������ ���
�	
�	P�



��������	
������
��� ������������
������
����������	�����������������

������������������ �!������"#�$�$$� �
���%�

&����
���������
��'

������(�'�����	������������������)��
���	
�������������
���
����(�	��������������
	
�� $*�+�����
������������������,��������*�-��
��.�)��	��������!��'
���#���)�
�����
�������	��
��
���������������
���	
���*� �!������%����
����(������
����
�������
��
�����
((�)�����
���	��
������/��)�0�1������
�����*�+����2
��
	�#��
���
�
�
����13�����	�
�����(�����
�� ��4-3�)��������������(���
����������	�����
������
�
���
��
����
	������
��	����	��
����/�%*�1
��
��
��	
������
((�)����)��.���� 3+�'*�� �*�4���	�����(����	�
�����!�	���,��������*�����������������

���
����)�������������
�����������
�����	�����*��
�����.������
��������
��!��-!�����
��'�������������'
����������!�	������
�������
���
���(
	������
���
	������
����
���5������	������������%�6��
���(
	����7���
������������"86��
���(
	����9*�1
����)
���:
���
������(��
����������������	���(��
��+�+�5+���������

!����+�
�����9�'������
���#���
((������
��'�+�5��
���'����(������

!����+�
����9*�� ;*����������+��������
����,������1
�����������
��������
����

�����
����(���
������
��*��<=�>?@@ABBCC�DCE?FBG�HIJKLJMKN���*�2
�������
����
�����	������������������
�������
���������'�����������!��)����
��+�!���������!
����*�1
����������������������
��+�!���������!
�����������OP$Q�(
����#���������
�!���
����	������
�����	���������
��*�R��)
����S��������

���
��
����
�����	����������������
!
��
��������������	����������������*��T=�>?FFCGE?UVCUWC�XYUZ?F@[BA?U\�HIJK]JL̂N����������������_�
���$�$$�$��)��������
����(��
����:����������	
������
�����������������	�������������
�������)��
�(
�������
����
��	��������7�(����������
(��
�����	��������������(�����������7���	�
���������
��)��������(���������������
����	
����7��
������������	���7�	����	�����
���������	�����
���
���������������������(����
��������	����������!����������
	
����	���		���*��̀=�a?[FV�?Z�bCcCWB@CU�d�<A[AG?U�>?@@CUBG��HIJK̂JMKN���*�_
������
����

���
�������������	�������	���������������
����)��	���.�
����
:�	����	������������*�1
���)��������
�)
��
���
���	��*�1�)��'���.���*� ��)
��������������4���
����
�����)
����
	���
���
��������
���	���.*�e$*;�����������+,�+�(�����)���������(������f�	�����	
�
�������������������������������5��(��!���������)�������������(�����
������f�	���1�49*�1
����������
)���	��
��������
����
���	������	��������
��#��
�#����)���
���*�1
��(���������
��
�������'������������	���������(�����)���+�����
����������	�
�
�����)
����� �!������gQ*��h=�bBiVCUB�DCEFCGCUB[BAjC�>?@@CUBG�HLJklJlmN�3�����4�n�������)��.����)��
�
��
�!�����������
����
�
�����	
���������������������
��!����
��������	����n����)�������������

�����������)
���
���������
������
����������	
������
��*��
��	����
���
����'�������opqqrpst�uvw�xqyz{�|}�~qs�pqw�vu�rpq��qsw�sz�����ywzq��������qr���yqz�q�



��������	
������
��� ������������
������
����������	�����������������

������������������ �!������"#�$�$$� �
���%�

��
��&�����
	����&���������
����
��#�
��'����
���
����
�����
���
���
��	��&����	���
�����
�(�)�� �!������*#�+�!�����
������
��,-�+�����.
�/�'��
��
�� �����
���0��	
�����+�����
�	��1����
����(�2����������+�!�����2�
���+	����������������3
�����4�������� �!������*5�
���*%6�����'����

!���
�������7�&
��� �!������*�#�*"#�*5�
���$*(�8
�����������	
���� �!������5��������
���
	
���'��7�
���
����
����	���
��������������!���*5����!���(��9:�;<=>?�@ABCA>�D<BBAEFG�HIJKLJIMN���7��2
�����������������

���	�������&���1����'
���
���'��7����
���&����'��������	����	������O��'��7���(������	���
��������������!���� �!�����5(����(�.�������

�7����
���������3�	��
�����.��
�������&����&&�������
��������
��(�����(���
���'
��
����	�
��!���&�
���'
��'����'��7��������
���������
���&���3��������
��!��3�	��&���������
���
���������(����&�����

��2�������2
���

�������!����
����	��������(����(�4
���
��

�7����!�������&����
��'��7����������
��������#���������
���'
�������
����
�������	��
����
����������������'

��'
����	���
��(�8
��+�!�����&����
�����
��'����
�����
��(��P:�Q?R<S>EBAEF�HIJKTJULN�VW�XYZ[Y\]̂�_Ẁab�cdaef�]agd�a�]hWihb�Wh�agjhklb�Ẁd�]ddWibmn�oldWp̀db�q ìWibm�fdphbgdg�Ẁd�]hWihbn�rhWihb�\affdg�sZYn�thee�paee�uhWdn��� �����������������
��.�1���	�� ��������	����.
�����������



Hudson School District - Hudson, NH 

Discipline Report 
November 16, 2022 

 

 

October 2022 
 

School 
Days In-
School 

Suspension  

Days Out-of-
School 

Suspension 

Reported 
Incidents of 

Bullying 

Incidents of 
Bullying 

Being 
"Found" 

ELC - Library Street 0 0 0 0 

ELC - Dr. H.O. Smith 1 1 0 0 

Hills Garrison 4 2 0 0 

Nottingham West 0 1 0 0 

Hudson Memorial 24 38 5 1 

Alvirne 11 22 2 0 

Total 40 64 7 1 

 

Hills Garrison – In School Suspension – 2 students, 2 days each 

Hudson Memorial  
In School Suspension –1 students/3x 
Out of School Suspension  - 1 students/2x 

Alvirne High School 
In School Suspension – 1 student/2x 

 

September 2022 
 

School 
Days In-
School 

Suspension  

Days Out-of-
School 

Suspension 

Reported 
Incidents of 

Bullying 

Incidents of 
Bullying 

Being 
"Found" 

ELC - Library Street 0 0 0 0 

ELC - Dr. H.O. Smith 0 0 0 0 

Hills Garrison 0 0 0 0 

Nottingham West 0 2 0 0 

Hudson Memorial 8 39 1 1 

Alvirne 4 9 2 2 

Total 12 50 3 3 

 



To: HSD School Board

From: Steve Beals, Principal
Susan Bureau, Dean of Academics

Date: November 17, 2022

RE: Advanced Placement Data Update

We are pleased to provide the following update to our AP participation rate for the
2022-2023 school year:

This increase in the number of students choosing to engage in college-level coursework
is positive momentum for our school and district.  We are very proud of our students and
teachers who challenge themselves through this rigorous curriculum, and we are
committed to further opportunities and growth moving forward..




	2022-10-26 - Hudson School Board Draft Minutes .pdf
	A. Call to Order [0:00:15]
	1. Pledge of Allegiance

	B. Public Input [0:00:30]
	C. New Business [0:00:45]
	D. Non-Public Session - RSA 91-A:3 II a and b [3:11:32]
	E. Leave Non-Public Session and Adjourn [ 3:27:32]

	JCA Change of Class of School or Assignment Best Interests and Manifest Hardship - NHSBA version .pdf
	JCA Change of School or Assignment

	EHB Data and Records Retention .pdf
	EHB Data and Records Retention

	ADD Safe Schools (1).pdf
	HUDSON SCHOOL DISTRICT
	ADOPTED: 09/09/2019
	Safe Schools

	ILBAA High School Graduation.pdf
	ILBAA High School Graduation Competencies

	ILBA Assessment of Educational Programs.pdf
	ILBA Assessment of Educational Programs

	IK Earning of High School Credit (1).pdf
	IK Earning of High School Credit
	Related Policies: BAAA, IKF, ILBA, ILBAA, and IMDB

	IJOC Volunteers.pdf
	IJOC Volunteers

	IHCD  Advanced Course Work, Advanced Placement Courses & Stem Dual & Concurrent Enrollment Program .pdf
	IHCD Advanced Course Work/Advanced Placement Courses & Stem Dual & Concurrent Enrollment Program

	GBCD Background Investigation and Criminal Records .pdf
	GBCD Background Investigation and Criminal Records

	EHAB Data Governance and Security.pdf
	EHAB Data Governance and Security

	EEAEA Mandatory Drug and Alcohol Testing.pdf
	EEAEA Mandatory Drug and Alcohol Testing

	BHE School Board Use of Email.pdf
	BHE School Board Use of Email




